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Chew Hon Foong, aged 55, was appointed to the Board of 
Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad on 17 April 2008. He is also 
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

As the co-founder, he has more than thirty (30) years 
of experience in the home linen industry. He has been 
instrumental in the development, growth and success of the 
Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad Group during his tenure with 
the Group. 

He started his career in 1979 when he joined Yoon On, 
a partnership company, which is involved in trading and 
retailing of textiles and home linen. With his strong business 
acumen, he was involved in developing and creating own 
brands of bed linen which was marketed under the names 
Diana and Novelle in 1982.

In 1988, together with his brother, Chew Hon Keong, he 
established Syarikat Yoong Onn Sdn Bhd and took over 
the entire business of the partnership company, Yoon On. 
His main intention is to expand the business to include 
international trades. Besides overseeing the Group activities, 
he is actively involved in creating fabric designs for both the 
mass and niche markets. He has extensive experience in the 
development and creation of home linen designs and he is 
currently heading the Group’s in-house design team. He is 
mainly responsible for the overall operations of the Group 
with emphasis on strategic business planning and promoting 
brand equity of products. 

He does not have any other directorships of public companies.

Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff, aged 66, was appointed to the 
Board of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad on 28 September 
2009. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee 
of the Company.

He holds BA (Honours) from University Malaya in 1974. Datuk 
Kamaludin started his career in 1974 as an Administrative 
and Diplomatic Officer in the public sector and subsequently, 
he held various distinguished positions in the Ministry of 
Finance, Ministry of Defence, Road Transport Department 
and Ministry of Entrepreneur Development. In appreciation 
to his services, Datuk Kamaludin has been awarded with 
various accolades. In 2000, he was awarded the Bintang 
Panglima Gemilang Darjah Kinabalu (P.G.D.K) which carries 
the title “Datuk”.

Datuk Kamaludin also sits on several boards in the corporate 
sector. From 2004 to 2007, he was the Chief Operating 
Officer of Fomema Sdn Bhd. He is currently the Chairman 
of Johore Tin Berhad, Executive Vice Chairman of Loh & Loh 
Constructions Sdn Bhd (a subsidiary company of Loh & Loh 
Corporation Berhad) and also holds directorship in other 
private limited companies. 

DATUK KAMALUDIN BIN YUSOFF 
Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Malaysian

CHEW HON FOONG 
Managing Director and Group Chief Executive Officer

Malaysian

profile of directors



13Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad
A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 4

Chew Hon Keong, aged 54, is the co-founder and was 
appointed to the Board of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad on 
17 April 2008.

He has more than thirty (30) years of experience in the home 
linen industry. His career started in 1979 when he joined Yoon 
On, a partnership, which is involved in trading and retailing 
of textiles and home linen. He also assisted in establishing 
Syarikat Yoong Onn Sdn Bhd in 1988. 

As the other partner of Yoon On, he was also involved in many 
aspects of the business in textiles and home linen, which 
includes technical specification in fabrics. His capability has 
enabled the Company to develop new range of product to 
cater for different markets and industries. 

With an in-depth knowledge in the production processes, he 
together with his brother, Chew Hon Foong were involved 
in the establishment of Sleep Focus Sdn Bhd in 1996 and 
the construction of Nilai manufacturing plant for the Group’s 
manufacturing operations. He is primarily responsible in 
overseeing the overall management and strategic business 
development of the Group with emphasis on product 
development and product research. 

He does not have any other directorships of public companies.

Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed, aged 64, was appointed to 
the Board of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad on 28 September 
2009. He is also a member of the Audit Committee and 
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Datuk Hairuddin obtained his Bachelor in Social Science 
(Honours) from Universiti Sains Malaysia in 1980. He joined 
the Royal Malaysian Police Force in 1970. He was since 
promoted to various senior positions. He was appointed the 
Director of Commercial Crime Department in Royal Malaysia 
Police in 2005, a position he held until his retirement in 
2006. During his tenure as Head of Commercial Crime 
Department, he was appointed to be a member of the High 
Powered Corporate Governance Committee to oversee 
all government-linked companies in the country. He has 
wide experience in fraud detection and commercial crime 
investigation.

He does not have any other directorships of public companies.

CHEW HON KEONG
Executive Director and Group Chief Operating Officer 

Malaysian

DATUK HAIRUDDIN BIN MOHAMED
Independent Non-Executive Director

Malaysian

profile of directors (cont’d)
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profile of directors (cont’d)

Yeoh Chong Keng, aged 62, who is a lawyer by profession and 
was appointed to the Board of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad 
on 28 September 2009. He also serves as the Chairman of 
the Nomination Committee and  Remuneration Committee 
and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company.

He obtained his Barrister-at-law from Lincoln’s Inn, England 
in 1980. He was a senior police officer in the Royal Malaysian 
Police Force before proceeding to study law at Lincoln’s Inn, 
England. He was called to the English Bar and Malaysian Bar 
in 1980 and 1981 respectively and is the Managing Partner of 
a legal firm in Kuala Lumpur. He has also acted as counsel 
for the Government of Hong Kong. He is an experienced 
lawyer specialising in corporate and banking law.

He has, in the past served as an Independent Director in 
several public listed companies. Since 14 February 2000, he 
is an Independent Director of The Store Corporation Berhad. 
He is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee 
and serves as a member in the Audit Committee and 
Remuneration Committee of The Store Corporation Berhad.

He is also currently an Independent Director of Tokio Marine 
Life Insurance Bhd. He has held this position since 2002 and 
is the Chairman of the Risk Management and Nomination 
Committee as well as member of the Audit Committee. 

YEOH CHONG KENG
Independent Non-Executive Director

Malaysian
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profile of directors (cont’d)

Lee Kim Seng, aged 69, was appointed to the Board of 
Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad on 28 September 2009. He 
also serves as the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a 
member of the Nominee Committee of the Company. 

He is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, 
Malaysian Institute of Taxation and The Institute of Internal 
Auditors, Malaysia. He was previously a member of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. 

He has more than thirty (30) years of relevant working 
experience in the various services encompassing upstream 
and downstream industries. He joined Harrisons & Crosfield 
(Sabah) Sdn. Bhd. in 1976 as a Senior Accountant. He was 
subsequently transferred to Harrisons & Crosfield (Malaysia) 
Sdn. Bhd. in 1980 and after a year, he was promoted to Chief 
Accountant. Thereafter, he was promoted to Associate 
Director (Finance) in 1986. 

In 1987, he joined SP Holdings Ltd. in Papua New Guinea. 
Thereafter, in 1990, he joined a plantation group Raja Garuda 
Mas (“RGM”) based in Medan, Indonesia. In 1993, he was 
promoted to Group Financial Controller of the Forestry 
Division of the RGM group. In 1996, he was transferred to 
a joint-venture oil palm plantation group, jointly owned by 
the RGM and the SALIM group. In 1997 after completing 
his assignment, he was then transferred to a public listed 
subsidiary of RGM group as Senior Financial Controller.  

In 2004, he joined Sinar Mas Group (“SMG”) as Vice-
President of Internal Audit of a forestry group operating in 
Riau, Sumatera. He was then transferred to the position of 
Vice-President Business Control in 2005. After a year, he was 
transferred to the head office of SMG, Jakarta, as an adviser 
to Managing Director-Finance, Forestry Division until his 
retirement in 2008. 

He does not have any other directorships of public listed 
companies. 

Currently, he is involved in engineering and construction as 
well as in the mining business.

LEE KIM SENG
Independent Non-Executive Director

Malaysian

notes to Profile of Directors:

1. Chew Hon Keong is the brother of 
Chew Hon Foong

 Save as disclosed, none of 
the directors has any family 
relationship with any director of 
the Company.

2. Save for Chew Hon Foong, Chew 
Hon Keong and Yeoh Chong Keng, 
who have interest in recurrent 
related party transactions as 
disclosed in item 11 under 
additional compliance information 
in this Annual Report, none of 
the directors has any conflict of 
interest with the Company.

3. None of the directors has been 
convicted of any offences within 
the past ten (10) years other than 
traffic offences, if any.

4. Please refer to the analysis of 
shareholdings of this Annual 
Report for details of the directors’ 
shareholdings in the Company.

5. Save for Chew Hon Keong and 
Lee Kim Seng, who attended four 
(4) Board meetings, all directors 
attended all the five (5) Board 
meetings of the Company held 
during the financial year ended 30 
June 2014.



Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to 

present the Annual Report and Audited Financial 

Statement of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad and its 

Group of Companies (“The Group”) for the financial 

year ended 30 June 2014.
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chairman’s statement



chairman’s statement (cont’d)

ReVIeW oF FInAnCIAL PeRFoRMAnCe

For the financial year ended 30 June 2014, the Group recorded revenue of RM197.93 million, as compared 
to the previous year 2013 revenue of RM178.61 million. The sale growth of RM19.32 million or 10.82% was 
mainly due to higher sales from the Group’s retail and consignment sales. 

The Group reported a slightly lower profit before tax of RM27.40 million for the financial year 2014, which 
is RM0.28 million or 1.01% lower than the profit before tax of RM27.68 million reported in the previous year 
2013. Lower profit before tax was caused primarily by the provision for certain expenses, higher rental, 
increases in selling and distribution costs. 

Shareholders’ funds has increased by RM13.64 million or 9.79% to RM152.98 million compared to 
RM139.34 million in the previous year 2013.

17Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad
A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 4



18 Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad
A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 4

chairman’s statement (cont’d)

oPeRAtIon ReVIeW 

The Group’s domestic operations had continued to be the main driver of its revenues and profits, and bed 
linen and bedding accessories made up the bulk of the Group’s revenue. Domestic operations accounted 
for 81.34% or RM161.00 million of the group’s consolidated revenues or an increase of RM14.53 million or 
9.92% as compared to RM146.47 million in the preceding year.

In the domestic market, our products are sold under our home grown brands through our sixteen 16 
fully owned boutiques shops, more than 200 counters at the premier department stores, specialty stores, 
hypermarkets and intermediaries.

For the financial year under review, the Group received several appreciation awards from its trading 
partners for the recognition of its outstanding sales performance including Top 10 Performing Company, 
Outstanding Sales Achievement, Partner in Excellence and Preferred Business Partner Awards.

FUtURe  PRosPeCts

The Group’s efficient business model and operations, financial stability and wide distribution network are 
the underlying fundamental strengths of the company. We are optimistic our business will remain strong 
for the rest of the year and in 2015, despite a less robust global economic outlook which may affect our 
domestic performance and our export markets in the region.  The Group aims to grow from strength to 
strength over the years and to achieve sustainable growth in sales and profits every year.

The Group expects to be able to sustain its performance in the financial year ending 2015 based on its 
fundamentals and business strategies that will allow it to withstand any unexpected adverse trading 
conditions.  The Group shall continue to seize all opportunities presented and to reach out to our consumers 
and create a wider market segment in Malaysia and in the region. With a team of dynamic leaders and 
capable staff, I am certain the Group will become a home-grown name to be acknowledged both locally 
and internationally.
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chairman’s statement (cont’d)

CoRPoRAte soCIAL ResPonsIBILItY (CsR)

The Group recognises that acting responsibly and sustainably create values for the company’s employees, 
customers, communities, shareholders, and society as a whole.

The Group initiated several CSR activities during the year by presenting donations to several charities 
and organisations. In addition to this, the Group provides a safe and healthy working environment for 
all employees under the requirements of Health, Safety and Environment through various in-house and 
external training programmes.

The Group has also complied with the relevant environmental legislation and promotes environmental 
awareness as part of its commitment to protect the environment and contribute towards sustainable 
development. 

DIVIDenDs

The Board of Directors is pleased to recommend a final single tier tax exempt dividend of 4% or 2.0 sen 
per ordinary share amounting to RM3.20 million in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2014 for 
shareholders’ approval in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.  

Coupled with the interim dividend of 4% or 2 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM3.20 million paid on 
25 July 2014, this makes a total dividend payout of 8% or 4.0 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM6.40 
million or 31.94% of the profit after tax of RM20.04 million for this financial year 2014.

The Group will continue to enhance returns to shareholders whilst seeing that appropriate funds are set 
aside for business expansion and other purposes such as capital expenditure and for working capital. 
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ACKnoWLeDGeMents

On behalf of the Board, I take this opportunity to thank my fellow Board members, the management team 
and staff for their contributions, commitment, hard work and service to the Group. 

I also thank our shareholders for the trust and confidence in me and my team of fellow Directors and team 
leaders, and to all our business associates, government agencies, bankers, advisors, customers, suppliers 
and trading partners, for your unfailing support to the Group. 

Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff
Chairman

chairman’s statement (cont’d)
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audit committee report

The Audit Committee of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad is pleased to present the Audit Committee Report 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

CoMPosItIon oF tHe AUDIt CoMMIttee

The present member of the Audit Committee are :

name       Designation  Directorship
  
Mr. Lee Kim Seng    Chairman  Independent Non-Executive Director
Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed  Member  Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng   Member  Independent Non-Executive Director

teRMs oF ReFeRenCe oF AUDIt CoMMIttee

(a) Terms of Membership

 The Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors amongst its members and consist 
of at least three (3) members, of whom all must be Non-Executive Directors with a majority of them 
being Independent Directors. The Chairman, who shall be elected by the Audit Committee, must be 
an Independent Director.

 The Committee shall include one member who is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants 
(“MIA”); or if he is not a member of the MIA, he must have at least three (3) years’ working experience 
and he must have passed the examinations specified in Part 1 of the First Schedule of the Accountants 
Act 1967; or he must be a member of one of the associations of accountants specified in Part II of the 
First Schedule of the Accountants Act 1967; or he must hold a degree/master/doctorate in accounting 
or finance and have at least 3 years’ post qualification experience in accounting or finance; or he must 
have at least 7 years’ experience being a chief financial officer of a corporation or having the function 
of being primarily responsible for the management of the financial affairs of a corporation or fulfills 
such other requirements as prescribed or approved by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa 
Securities”).

 In the event of any vacancy in the Audit Committee resulting in the non-compliance with the Listing 
Requirements of Bursa Securities, the Board shall appoint a new member within three (3) months.

 The Board of Directors shall review the term of office and the performance of an Audit Committee and 
each of its members at least once in every three (3) years.

 No alternate Director shall be appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.
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audit committee report (cont’d)

teRMs oF ReFeRenCe oF AUDIt CoMMIttee (cont’d)

(b) Meetings and Quorum of the Audit Committee

 In order to form a quorum in respect of a meeting of the Audit Committee, the majority of the members 
present must be Independent Directors. The Company Secretary shall act as secretary of the Audit 
Committee and shall be responsible, in conjunction with the Chairman, for drawing up the agenda and 
circulating it prior to each meeting.

 The Audit Committee met five (5) times during the financial year ended 30 June 2014. The details of 
the attendance of the meetings are disclosed under the heading “Attendance of the Audit Committee 
Meetings” on page 25 of this Annual Report.

 The Audit Committee may require the attendance of any management staff from Finance/Accounts 
Department or other departments deemed necessary together with a representative or representatives 
from the external auditors and/or internal auditors.

 In all five (5) meetings, the Chief Financial Officer was present to report on the results of the Group as 
well as to answer questions posed by the Audit Committee in relation to the results to be announced. 
During these Audit Committee meetings, representatives from the internal auditors had also been 
present to provide updates on the progress of internal audit work that have been conducted to date, and 
to also provide comments and recommendations, where applicable to improve the risk management 
framework supporting the activities of the Group.

 In any event, should the external auditors request, the Chairman of the Audit Committee shall convene 
a meeting of the committee to consider any matter the external auditors believe should be brought to 
the attention of the Directors or shareholders.

(c) Functions of the Audit Committee

 The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the following :-

1. to consider the appointment of the external auditor, the audit fee and any questions of resignation 
or dismissal;

2. to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and scope of the 
audit, and ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

3. to discuss with the external auditor on the evaluation of the system of internal controls and the 
assistance given by the employees to the external auditors;

4. to review and report to the Board if there is reason (supported by grounds) to believe that the 
external auditor is not suitable for reappointment;

5. to review the quarterly and year-end financial statements of the Company and Group prior to the 
approval of the Board, focusing particularly on :-

a. changes in or implementation of major accounting policies and practices;

b. significant adjustments arising from the audit;

c. the going concern assumption; and

d. compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements.
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teRMs oF ReFeRenCe oF AUDIt CoMMIttee (cont’d)

(c) Functions of the Audit Committee (cont’d)

6. to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and final audit, and any matter the 
auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of the management where necessary);

7. to review the external auditor’s management letter and management’s response;

8. to do the following in relation to the internal audit functions :-

a. review the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit 
function, and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work;

b. review the internal audit programme and the results of the internal audit processes or 
investigation undertaken and where necessary to ensure the appropriate action is taken on 
the recommendations of the internal audit function;

c. review any appraisal or assessment of the performance of the internal audit function;

d. approve any appointment or termination of the internal auditor; and

e. inform itself of resignations of internal auditor and provide the resigning internal auditor an 
opportunity to submit his reasons for resigning.

9. to review any related party transactions and conflict of interest situation that may arise within 
the Company or the Group;

10. to consider the major findings of internal investigations and the management’s response; and 

11. to consider any other functions or duties as may be agreed by the Committee and the Board.

(d) Rights of the Audit Committee

 The Audit Committee has ensured that it shall, wherever necessary and reasonable for the performance 
of its duties and in accordance with a procedure determined by the Board :-

1. have authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference;

2. have the resources which are required to perform its duties;

3. have full and unrestricted access to any information pertaining to the Company and Group;

4. have direct communication channels with the external auditors and person(s) carrying out the 
internal audit function or activity (if any);

5. be able to obtain independent professional or other advice when needed; and

6. be able to convene meetings with the external auditors, the internal auditors or both, excluding 
the attendance of other directors and employees of the Group, whenever deemed necessary.

audit committee report (cont’d)
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teRMs oF ReFeRenCe oF AUDIt CoMMIttee (cont’d)

(e) Procedure of Audit Committee

 The Audit Committee regulates its own procedures by :-

1. the calling of meetings;

2. the notice to be given of such meetings;

3. the voting and proceedings of such meetings;

4. the keeping of minutes; and

5. the custody, protection and inspection of such minutes.

(f) Review of the Audit Committee

 The Board of Directors shall ensure that the term of office and performance of the Audit Committee 
and each of its members are being reviewed at least once in every three years to determine whether 
such an Audit Committee and members have carried out their duties in accordance with their terms 
of reference.

(g) Attendance of the Audit Committee Meetings

 The details of attendance of each Audit Committee member in the Audit Committee meetings held 
during the financial year ended 30 June 2014 are as follows :-

         Meeting attended by the  
     Directors/total number of Meeting 
     held during the financial year ended 
 name   30 June 2014 % of Attendance

 Mr. Lee Kim Seng 4/5 80%
 Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed 5/5 100%
 Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng 5/5 100%

audit committee report (cont’d)
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teRMs oF ReFeRenCe oF AUDIt CoMMIttee (cont’d)

(h) summaries of Activities of the Audit Committee

 During the financial year up to the date of this Report, the Audit Committee carried out the following 
activities in discharging their duties and responsibilities :-

 1. Control

 Evaluated the overall effectiveness of the system of internal control through the review of the 
results of work performed by the internal and external auditors and discussions with the key 
management.

 2. Financial Results

 Reviewed quarterly results and audited annual financial statements of the Group and Company 
before recommending to the Board for release to Bursa Securities. The review should focus 
primarily on :

a) major judgmental areas, significant and unusual events;

b) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

c) the going concern assumptions;

d) compliance with applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia; and

e) compliance with Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities and other regulatory 
requirements.

 3. external Audit

a) reviewed with the external auditors, their audit plan for the financial year ended 30 June 
2014 to ensure that their scope of work adequately covers the activities of the Group;

b) reviewed the results and issues arising from their audit of the annual financial statements 
and their resolution of such issues as highlighted in their report to the Committee; and

c) reviewed their performance and independence before recommending to the Board their 
reappointment and remuneration.

 4. Internal Audit

a) reviewed with the internal auditors, their audit plan for the financial year ended 30 June 
2014 ensuring that principal risk areas were adequately identified and covered the plan;

b) reviewed the recommendations by internal audit, representations made and corrective 
actions taken by the management in addressing and resolving issues as well as ensuring 
that all issues were adequately addressed on a timely basis;

c) reviewed the competencies of the internal auditors to execute the plan, the audit programs 
used in the execution of the internal audit work and results of their work; and

d) reviewed the adequacy of the terms of reference of internal audit.

audit committee report (cont’d)
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CoRPoRAte GoVeRnAnCe stAteMent

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad (“the Company” or “YOCB”) is fully 
committed to promote and achieve the highest standard of corporate governance and to ensure that the 
principles and best practices in corporate governance as detailed in the Malaysian Code on Corporate 
Governance (“the Code”) are practised and adopted in YOCB and its subsidiaries (“the Group”).

The Board continuously evaluates the Group’s corporate governance practices and procedures with a 
view to adopt and implement the principles and best practices as recommended by the Code, wherever 
applicable, as a fundamental part of discharging its duties and responsibilities to protect  and enhance 
shareholders’ value. The Board believes that good corporate governance results in creation of long term 
value and benefits for all shareholders.

seCtIon 1 : tHe BoARD oF DIReCtoRs

The Board takes full responsibilities for the performance of the Group and guides the Group towards 
achieving its short and long term objectives, setting corporate strategies for growth and new business 
development while providing advice and direction to the management to enable the Group to achieve its 
corporate goal and objectives.

(a) Composition of the Board and Board Balance

 The Board members are professionals from diverse disciplines, tapping their respective qualifications 
and experiences in business, commercial and financial aspects. Together, they bring a wide range of 
competencies, experience and expertise which are vital towards the effective discharge of the Board’s 
responsibilities for the successful direction and growth of the Group. A brief profile of each Directors 
is presented on the Profile of the Directors in this Annual Report.

 The Board currently consists of six (6) members, comprising of two (2) Executive Directors and four 
(4) Independent Non-Executive Directors. This is in line with the Main Market Listing Requirements of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”), which require that at least two (2) or one-third 
(1/3) of the Board members, whichever is the higher, to be Independent Directors. 

 The Independent Directors also have the necessary skill and experience to bring an independent 
judgment to bear the issues of strategy, performance, resources including key appointments and 
standard of conducts.

 The Independent Directors are independent of management and majority shareholders. They provide 
independent views and judgment and at the same time, safeguard the interests of parties such as 
minority shareholders. No individual or group of individuals dominates the Board’s decision making 
process and the number of directors fairly reflects the investment of the shareholders.

 The roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director are distinguished and separated. The Chairman 
is responsible to ensure that the Board functions properly with good corporate governance practices 
and procedures, whilst the Managing Director is responsible for the day-to-day operations and 
business activities of the Group in accordance with the standard practices set out in the Board 
Charter. This is to ensure a balance of power and authority.

 The Board does not consider it necessary to nominate a Senior Independent Non-Executive Director 
to whom concerns may be conveyed. All members of the Board have demonstrated that they are 
always available to members and stakeholders.  All issues can be openly discussed during Board 
meetings. The Company is not marred with conflicts and controversies and also has not received any 
notice of matters of concern from stakeholders since its listing.

 All Directors have given their undertaking to comply with the Main Market Listing Requirements of 
Bursa Securities and the Independent Directors have confirmed their independence in writing.

corporate governance statement
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corporate governance statement (cont’d)

seCtIon 1 : tHe BoARD oF DIReCtoRs (cont’d)

(b) Board Responsibilities

 Having recognised the importance of an effective and dynamic Board, the Board members are guided 
by the area of responsibilities as outlined :-

• reviewing and adopting strategic plan for the Group;

• overseeing the conduct of the Group’s businesses to evaluate whether the businesses are being 
properly managed;

• identifying the principal risks and key performance indicators of the Group’s businesses and 
ensuring that appropriate systems are implemented and/or steps are taken to manage these 
risks;

• developing and implementing an investors relations programme or shareholder communication 
policy for the Group; and

• reviewing the adequacy and the integrity of the Group’s internal control systems and management 
information systems, including systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, 
directives and guidelines.

(c) Re-election of Directors

 In accordance with the Company’s Article of Associations, all Directors including the Managing 
Director shall retire from the office at least once every three (3) years, but shall be eligible for re-
election. Directors who are appointed by the Board during the financial year are subject to re-election 
by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting following their appointment.

(d) Directors’ training

 The Group acknowledges the fact that continuous education is vital for the Board members to gain 
insight into the state of economy, technological advances in the core business, latest regulatory 
updates, and management strategies. In compliance with the Main Market Listing Requirements and 
the relevant Practice Note issued by Bursa Securities, all Directors have attended and successfully 
completed their Mandatory Accreditation Programme within the stipulated time frame as prescribed 
by Bursa Securities.

 During the financial year ended 30 June 2014, the Directors have attended the following trainings :-

 name   title of training Date

 Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff Governance In Action – What Every  10 April 2014
       Director Should Know 

 Mr. Chew Hon Foong  Governance In Action – What Every  10 April 2014
       Director Should Know 

 Mr. Chew Hon Keong  Governance In Action – What Every   10 April 2014
       Director Should Know

 Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng  Governance In Action – What Every  10 April 2014
       Director Should Know

 Mr. Lee Kim Seng    Governance In Action – What Every  10 April 2014
       Director Should Know 

 Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed Governance In Action – What Every   10 April 2014
       Director Should Know 
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seCtIon 1 : tHe BoARD oF DIReCtoRs (cont’d)

(d) Directors’ training (cont’d)

 The Directors are also aware of their duty to undergo appropriate training from time to time to ensure 
that they are equipped to carry out their duties effectively. The Board is mindful therefore of the 
need to keep abreast of changes in both the regulatory and business environments as well as with 
new developments within the industry in which the Group operates. Whenever the need arises, the 
Company will provide briefings to new recruits to the Board, to ensure they have a comprehensive 
understanding on the operations of the Group and the Company.

(e) supply of information

 The Board has a formal schedule of matters for decision-making to ensure that the direction and 
control of the Group is firmly in its hands.

 Prior to each Board meeting, a full agenda together with relevant reports and comprehensive Board 
papers are distributed to all Directors in a timely manner to enable the Directors to consider the 
matters to be deliberated and where necessary, obtain further information.

 Proceedings of Board meetings are duly recorded and signed by the Chairman of the meeting.

 Every Director has full and timely access to all Group information, records, documents and property 
to enable them to discharge their duties and responsibilities effectively. The Directors, whether 
collectively or individually, may seek independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at 
the Company’s expenses, if required.

(f) Board Meetings

 The Board meets on a quarterly basis with additional meetings to be held whenever necessary. There 
were five (5) Board meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2014 and the details of 
attendance are as follows :-

         Meeting attended by the  
     Directors/total number of Meeting 
     held during the financial year ended 
 name of Director 30 June 2014 % of Attendance

 executive Directors  
 Mr. Chew Hon Foong 5/5 100%
 Mr. Chew Hon Keong 4/5 80%
  
 non-executive Directors  
 Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff 5/5 100%
 Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed 5/5 100%
 Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng 5/5 100%
 Mr. Lee Kim Seng 4/5 80%

 During the financial year ended 30 June 2014, five (5) Board meetings were
 convened on 28 August 2013, 10 October 2013, 27 November 2013, 27 February 2014
 and 29 May 2014. 
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seCtIon 1 : tHe BoARD oF DIReCtoRs (cont’d)

(g) Board Committees

 The Board has established the following Committees to assists the Board in discharging its duties 
and responsibilities effectively :-

• Audit Committee
• Nomination Committee
• Remuneration Committee

 The terms of reference of each Board Committee are set out in Board Charter and have been approved 
by the Board. These Committees have the authority to examine particular issues and report to the 
Board with their recommendations. However, the ultimate responsibility for the final decision on all 
matters lies with the Board.

(h) Audit Committee

 The report of the Audit Committee is set out in the Audit Committee Report in of this Annual Report.

(i) nomination Committee

 Our Nomination Committee was established on 28 September 2009 and the members of the Nomination 
Committee consist of the following members :-

 name    Designation Directorship

 Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng Chairman  Independent Non-Executive Director

 Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed Member Independent Non-Executive Director

 Mr. Lee Kim Seng Member Independent Non-Executive Director

 The summary of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are as follows :-

 (i) review the Board structure, size and composition;

 (ii) nominate candidates to the Board to fill Board vacancies when they arise;

 (iii) recommend Directors who are retiring by rotation to be put forward for re-election; and

 (iv) ensure that all Board appointees undergo an appropriate introduction and training programme.

 The Board annually reviews the required mix of skills, experience and other qualities of the Directors 
to ensure that the Board is functioning effectively and efficiently.

corporate governance statement (cont’d)
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seCtIon 1 : tHe BoARD oF DIReCtoRs (cont’d)

(j) Remuneration Committee

 Our Remuneration Committee was established on 28 September 2009 and the members of the 
Remuneration Committee consist of the following members :-

 name    Designation Directorship
  
 Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director

 Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff Member Independent Non-Executive Chairman

 Mr. Chew Hon Foong Member Managing Director and Group Chief  
     Executive Officer

 During the financial year ended 30 June 2014, Remuneration Committee meetings were convened on 
27 February 2014, 29 May 2014 and 27 August 2014. 

 The summary of the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are as follows :-

 (i) recommend to the Board the remuneration of the Directors;

(ii) assist the Board in assessing the responsibility and commitment undertaken by the Board 
membership; and

(iii) assist the Board in ensuring the remuneration of the Directors commensurate with the 
responsibility and commitment of the Directors concerned.

seCtIon 2 : DIReCtoRs’ ReMUneRAtIon

(a) Remuneration Procedure

 The remuneration of directors is formulated to be competitive and realistic, emphasis being placed 
on performance and calibre, with aims to attract, motivate and retain Directors with the relevant 
experience, expertise and quality needed to assist in managing the Group effectively. 

 For Executive Directors, the remuneration packages link rewards to corporate and individual 
performance whilst for the Non- Executive Directors, the level of remuneration is linked to their 
experience and level of responsibilities undertaken.

 The level of remuneration for the Executive Directors is determined by the Remuneration Committee 
after giving due consideration to the compensation levels for comparable positions among other 
similar Malaysian public listed companies. The determination of the remuneration package of Non-
Executive Directors, including Non-Executive Chairman should be a matter for the Board as a whole. 
The individuals concerned should abstain from discussing their own remuneration.

corporate governance statement (cont’d)
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seCtIon 2 : DIReCtoRs’ ReMUneRAtIon (cont’d)

(b) Remuneration Package

 The details of the remuneration of the Directors of the Company are as follows:-

     executive  non-executive    
    Directors Directors

     (RM’000) (RM’000)

 Emoluments  1,341 17
 Directors’ fees  - 165

 The number of Directors whose remuneration falls into the following bands is as follows:-

 Range of Remuneration  executive Directors  non-executive Directors

 Below RM50,000 - 3
 RM 50,001 – RM 100,000 - 1
 RM 600,001 – RM 650,000 1 -
 RM 700,001 – RM750,000 1 -

seCtIon 3 :  sHAReHoLDeRs

(a) Dialogue between Company and Investors

 The Board maintains an effective communications policy that enables both the Board and the 
management to communicate effectively with its shareholders, stakeholders and the public. The 
policy effectively interprets the operations of the Group to the shareholders and accommodates 
feedback from shareholders, which are factored into the Group’s business decision.

 The Board communicates information on the operations, activities and performance of the Group to 
the shareholders, stakeholders and the public through the following :-

i. the Annual Report, which contains the financial and operational review of the Group’s business, 
corporate information, financial statements and information on Audit Committee and Board of 
Directors;

ii. various announcements made to the Bursa Securities, which include announcements on 
quarterly results;

iii. the Company website at http://www.yoongonn.com;

iv. meetings with research analysts and fund managers to give them a better understanding of the 
business conducted by the Group in particular, and of the industry in which the Group’s business 
operates, in general; and

v. participation in surveys and research conducted by professional organisations as and when such 
requests arise.

corporate governance statement (cont’d)
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seCtIon 3 :  sHAReHoLDeRs (cont’d)

(b) the Annual General Meeting

 The Annual General Meeting serves as an important means for shareholders communication. Notice 
of the Annual General Meeting and Annual Reports are sent to shareholders twenty one days prior to 
the meeting.

 At each Annual General Meeting, the Board presents the progress and performance of the Group’s 
business and encourages attendance and participation of shareholders during questions and answers 
sessions. The Chairman and the Board will respond to all questions raised by the shareholders during 
the Annual General Meeting.

seCtIon 4 : ACCoUntABILItY AnD AUDIt

(a) Financial Reporting

 The Board aims to provide and present a clear, balanced and comprehensive assessment of the 
Group’s financial performance and prospects through the quarterly announcement of results to the 
Bursa Securities as well as the Chairman’s Statement, review of operations and annual financial 
statements in the Annual Report. The Audit Committee assists the Board in ensuring accuracy 
and adequacy of information by overseeing and reviewing the financial statements and quarterly 
announcements prior to the submission to Bursa Securities.

(b) statement on Directors’ Responsibility in relation to the Audited Financial statements

 The Directors are responsible to ensure that the annual financial statements are drawn up in 
accordance with the applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia and Companies, Act 1965. 
A Statement by the Directors of their responsibilities in preparing the financial statements is set out 
separately on page 37 of this Annual Report.

(c) Internal Control and Risk Management

 The Board acknowledges their responsibilities for the internal control system of the Group, covering 
not only financial controls but also controls relating to operations, compliance and risk management. 
Information of the Group’s internal control and risk management is presented in the Statement of 
Internal Control of this Annual Report.

(d) Relationship with the Auditors

 The Board has established a formal and transparent professional relationship with the Group’s 
Auditors, both internal and external.  Whenever the need arises, the Auditors would highlight to the 
Audit Committee and the Board from time to time on matters that require the Board’s attention. The 
role of the Audit Committee in relation to the auditors, both internal and external is set out in the 
Audit Committee Report of this Annual Report.

 This corporate governance statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board dated 
21 October 2014.
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IntRoDUCtIon

The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance requires listed companies to maintain a sound system 
of risk management and internal control to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the Group’s 
assets. The Board of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad is committed to maintain a sound system of risk 
management and internal control in the Group. Set out below is the Board of Directors’ “Statement on 
Risk Management and Internal Control” which has been prepared in accordance with the Guidance for 
Directors of Public Listed Companies on the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control which 
outlines the frameworks and processes the Board is to adopt in maintaining the adequacy and integrity of 
risk management and the system of internal control of the Group.

ResPonsIBILItY oF tHe BoARD

The Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for the adequacy and effectiveness of the Yoong Onn 
Corporation Berhad (“the Group”) risk management and internal control system. The Board ensures 
that the system manages the Group’s key areas of risk within an acceptable risk profile to increase the 
likelihood that the Group’s policies and business objectives will be achieved. The Board continually reviews 
the system to ensure it provides a reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement 
of management and financial information and records or against financial losses or fraud.

The Board has established an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant 
risks faced by the Group and this process includes enhancing the risk management and internal control 
system as and when there are changes to the business environment or regulatory guidelines. Management 
assists the Board in the implementation of the Board’s policies and procedures on risk management and 
internal control by identifying and assessing the risks faced, and in the design, operation and monitoring 
of suitable internal controls to mitigate and control these risks. 

The Board is of the view that the risk management and internal control system in place for the year under 
review and up to the date of issuance of the financial statements is adequate and effective to safeguard the 
shareholders’ investment, the interests of customers, regulators and employees, and the Group’s assets.

RIsK MAnAGeMent FRAMeWoRK

The Board is aware that a sound system of internal control should be embedded in the operations of the 
Group and form part of its culture. This system should be capable of responding quickly to evolving risks 
to the business arising from factors within the Group and changes in the business environment. It should 
include procedures for reporting immediately to appropriate levels of management any significant control 
failings or weaknesses that are identified together with details of corrective action being taken. The Board 
has established a Risk Management Framework which consists of a structured approach covering the 
identification of risks, assessment of risks and reviewing and implementing strategies to mitigate those 
risks. The Board has established an Executive Committee comprising of Executive Directors and Senior 
Management to oversee the risk management initiatives of the Group. The Board and the Audit Committee 
regularly reviews this process to ensure the effectiveness of its risk management.

statement on risk management and internal control
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InteRnAL ContRoL AnD InteRnAL AUDIt FUnCtIon

The Board has outsourced the internal audit function of the Group to an independent professional firm, 
IBDC Malaysia Sdn Bhd for the year ended 30 June 2014. The audit planning memorandum presented 
annually by the Internal Auditors is adopted by the Audit Committee to review the effectiveness of the 
Group’s system of internal control.

The Group’s system of internal control comprises but not limited to the following activities :-
• The Audit Committee comprises solely of Independent Non-Executive Directors with full access to 

both the internal and external auditors. Audit Committee meetings are held separately from Board 
meetings;

• Periodic internal audits are conducted by the internal auditors to monitor compliance to established 
procedures and to review internal control measures. The internal audit reports would highlight any 
significant risks, non compliances and areas for improvements;

• Each core business process function is audited on a rotational basis and the Audit Committee reviews 
the internal audit issues identified, and together with the Management recommends improvements to 
the Board; and

• Follow up reviews are conducted on previous audit issues highlighted to ensure that the 
recommendations highlighted had been addressed by Management.

ReVIeW oF tHe stAteMent BY eXteRnAL AUDItoRs

The external auditors have reviewed this Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control pursuant to 
the scope set out in Recommended Practice Guide (“RPG”) 5 issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountant 
(“MIA”) for inclusion in the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2014 and reported to the Board that 
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the statement is inconsistent with 
their understanding of the process adopted by the Board in reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the risk management and internal control system. 

ConCLUsIon

During the financial year under review, the Board is satisfied that no material losses, deficiencies or 
errors were arising from any inadequacy or failure of the Group’s internal control system that will require 
disclosure in the Annual Report. The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have provided 
assurance to the Board that the Group’s risk management and internal control system, in all material 
aspects is operating adequately and effectively.

The Board will continue to take measures to strengthen the system of internal control maintained by the 
Group and ensure shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets are consistently safeguarded.

This Statement of Internal Control is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board dated 21 October 
2014.

statement on risk management and internal control 
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statement on directors’ responsibility
in relation to the audited financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad (“YOCB”) and its subsidiary companies (“the Group”) 
as at the end of the financial year, and of the results and cash flows for the financial year ended. 

Therefore, in preparing the financial statements of YOCB for the year ended 30 June 2014, the Directors 
have :-

• adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied them on a consistent basis;

• made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; 

• ensured applicable approved accounting standards have been followed and any material departures 
have been disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

• ensured the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group and the Company keep proper accounting and 
other records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Group and the Company, 
and ensuring that the financial statements comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965. The 
Directors have overall responsibilities for taking such steps to safeguard the assets of the Group, and to 
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

This above statement is made in accordance with the resolution passed at the Board of Directors’ meeting 
held on 21 October 2014.
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The directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

PRinciPal actiVitieS

The Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding and the provision of management 
services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 6 to the financial statements. There 
have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year. 

ReSUltS

       tHe GROUP                          tHe cOmPanY
       Rm’000  Rm’000

Profit after taxation attributable to owners of the Company  20,037  6,158

DiViDenDS

Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company paid:

i) an interim single tier dividend of 2.0 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM3,200,000 in respect of 
the financial year ended 30 June 2013; and

ii) a final single tier dividend of 2.0 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM3,200,000 in respect of the 
financial year ended 30 June 2013.

The Company declared an interim single tier dividend of 2.0 sen per ordinary share amounting to 
RM3,200,000 in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final single tier dividend of 2.0 sen per ordinary share 
amounting to RM3,200,000 in respect of the current financial year will be proposed for shareholders’ 
approval. The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such 
dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in the financial year ending 30 June 2015.

ReSeRVeS anD PROViSiOnS

All material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year are disclosed in the 
financial statements. 

iSSUeS OF SHaReS anD DeBentUReS
 
During the financial year,

(a) there were no changes in the authorised and issued and paid-up share capital of the Company; and

(b) there were no issues of debentures by the Company. 

OPtiOnS GRanteD OVeR UniSSUeD SHaReS 

During the financial year, no options were granted by the Company to any person to take up any unissued 
shares in the Company.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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BaD anD DOUBtFUl DeBtS

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took 
reasonable steps to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and 
the making of allowance for impairment losses on receivables, and satisfied themselves that all known 
bad debts had been written off and that adequate allowance had been made for impairment losses on 
receivables.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that would require the further 
writing off of bad debts, or the additional allowance for impairment losses on receivables in the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company.

cURRent aSSetS

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took 
reasonable steps to ascertain that any current assets other than debts, which were unlikely to be realised 
in the ordinary course of business, including their value as shown in the accounting records of the Group 
and of the Company, have been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the values 
attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

ValUatiOn metHODS

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which render 
adherence to the existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company 
misleading or inappropriate. 

 
cOntinGent anD OtHeR liaBilitieS

The contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements. At the date of this report, 
there does not exist:

(i) any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the 
financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii) any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial 
year.

No contingent or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to 
become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the 
opinion of the directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet 
their obligations when they fall due. 

cHanGe OF ciRcUmStanceS

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this 
report or the financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated 
in the financial statements misleading. 
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itemS OF an UnUSUal natURe

The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not, in the 
opinion of the directors, substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual 
nature.

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any 
item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect 
substantially the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year.

HOlDinG cOmPanY

The holding company is Casatex Cosmo Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in Malaysia. 

DiRectORS 

The directors who served since the date of the last report are as follows:-

Chew Hon Foong
Chew Hon Keong
Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff
Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed 
Yeoh Chong Keng
Lee Kim Seng

DiRectORS’ inteReStS

In accordance with the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the end 
of the financial year in shares in the Company and its related corporations during the financial year are as 
follows:

         number Of Ordinary Shares Of Rm0.50 each
      at   at
      1.7.2013 Bought Sold 30.6.2014

Direct interests

Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff  203,333  - - 203,333
Yeoh Chong Keng   144,000  - - 144,000
Lee Kim Seng    159,999  - 130,000 29,999

indirect interests
    
Chew Hon Foong   84,000,231 * - - 84,000,231 *
Chew Hon Keong   84,000,231 * - - 84,000,231 *

* - By virtue of their shareholdings in the holding company, Chew Hon Foong and Chew Hon Keong are 
deemed to have interests in shares in the Company and its related corporations to the extent of the 
holding company’s interests, in accordance with Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965. 

The other director holding office at the end of the financial year had no interest in shares in the Company 
or its related corporations during the financial year.
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Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad
A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 442

DiRectORS’ BeneFitS

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive 
any benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and 
receivable by directors as shown in the financial statements, or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of 
the Company) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or 
with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial 
financial interest except for any benefits which may be deemed to arise from transactions entered into 
in the ordinary course of business with companies in which certain directors have substantial financial 
interests as disclosed in Note 28 to the financial statements. 

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the Group or the Company a party to any arrangements 
whose object is to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or 
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

aUDitORS

The auditors, Messrs. Crowe Horwath, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

SiGneD in accORDance WitH a ReSOlUtiOn OF tHe DiRectORS

DateD 21 OCTOBER 2014

chew Hon Foong

chew Hon Keong 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (cont’d)
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

We, Chew Hon Foong and Chew Hon Keong, being two of the directors of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad, 
state that, in the opinion of the directors, the financial statements set out on pages 46 to 94 are drawn up 
in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards 
and the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of the Group and of the Company at 30 June 2014 and of their financial performance and 
cash flows for the financial year ended on that date.

The supplementary information set out in Note 33, which is not part of the financial statements, is prepared 
in all material respects, in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised 
and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities 
Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the directive of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

SiGneD in accORDance WitH a ReSOlUtiOn OF tHe DiRectORS

DateD 21 OCTOBER 2014

chew Hon Foong       chew Hon Keong 

I, Chew Hon Foong, I/C. No. 590205-10-5731, being the director primarily responsible for the financial 
management of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial 
statements set out on pages 46 to 94 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct, and I make this 
solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the 
Statutory Declarations Act 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by
Chew Hon Foong, I/C. No. 590205-10-5731,
at Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory 
on this 21 October 2014

Before me        chew Hon Foong

lai Din
No. W-668
Commissioner for Oaths

STATUTORY DECLARATION
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Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad, which comprise the statements 
of financial position as at 30 June 2014 of the Group and of the Company, the statements of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the 
Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 46 to 94.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to give a 
true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. The directors are also 
responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements 
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and 
of the Company as of 30 June 2014 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year 
then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To the Members of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad (Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No: 814138 - K
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Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:-

(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by 
the Company and its subsidiaries have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act. 

(b) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the 
Company’s financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of 
the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information 
and explanations required by us for those purposes.

(c) Our audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or 
any adverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

The supplementary information set out in Note 33 on page 95 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The directors are responsible for 
the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, 
Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants 
(“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary 
information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Other matter

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of 
the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other 
person for the content of this report.

crowe Horwath       James chan Kuan chee
Firm No: AF 1018       Approval No: 2271/10/15 (J)
Chartered Accountants      Chartered Accountant

21 October 2014

Kuala Lumpur

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (cont’d)
To The Members Of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad (Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No: 814138 - K
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      tHe GROUP tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013 2014 2013
     nOte Rm’000 Rm’000  Rm’000 Rm’000

aSSetS
nOn-cURRent aSSetS
Investments in subsidiaries 6 - - 57,565 57,565
Property, plant and equipment 7 42,893 38,884 1 3 
Goodwill     8 461 461 - -

      43,354 39,345 57,566 57,568

cURRent aSSetS
Inventories   9 67,234 57,223 - -
Trade receivables  10 42,796 34,649 - -
Other receivables, deposits and 
  prepayments   11 8,521 6,259 37 48
Amount owing by subsidiaries 12 - - 8,622 4,018 
Tax refundable   44 - - -
Short-term investment 13 12,000 10,000 12,000 10,000 
Deposits with financial institutions 14 15,230 27,234 8,530 15,430
Cash and bank balances  7,929 4,126 215 91

      153,754 139,491 29,404 29,587

tOtal aSSetS   197,108 178,836 86,970 87,155

eQUitY anD liaBilitieS
eQUitY
Share capital   15 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000
Merger deficit   16 (44,365) (44,365) - -
Retained profits  17 117,341 103,704 3,609 3,851

tOtal eQUitY   152,976 139,339 83,609 83,851

nOn-cURRent  liaBilitieS
Deferred tax liabilities  18 1,602 2,062 - -
Provision     179 169 - -

      1,781 2,231 - -

cURRent liaBilitieS 
Trade payables  19 5,659 2,734 - -
Other payables and accruals  6,397 6,502 86 81
Dividend payable   3,200 3,200 3,200 3,200
Provision for taxation  1,205 706 75 23
Short-term borrowings 20 25,890 24,124 - -

      42,351 37,266 3,361 3,304

tOtal liaBilitieS   44,132 39,497 3,361 3,304

tOtal eQUitY anD liaBilitieS  197,108 178,836 86,970 87,155

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 30 June 2014
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014

      tHe GROUP tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013 2014 2013
     nOte Rm’000 Rm’000  Rm’000 Rm’000

ReVenUe   21 197,927 178,607 6,446 4,638

cOSt OF SaleS    (117,785) (103,311)   -   -

GROSS PROFit   80,142 75,296 6,446 4,638

OtHeR incOme   1,385 722 741 839

      81,527 76,018 7,187 5,477

SellinG anD DiStRiBUtiOn eXPenSeS  (13,792) (11,637) (1) (1)

aDminiStRatiVe anD
  OPeRatinG eXPenSeS  (39,204) (35,848) (778) (695)

Finance cOStS   (1,129) (853) - -

PROFit BeFORe taXatiOn 22 27,402 27,680 6,408 4,781

incOme taX eXPenSe 23 (7,365) (7,227) (250) (462)

PROFit aFteR taXatiOn  20,037 20,453 6,158 4,319

OtHeR cOmPReHenSiVe incOme, 
  net OF taX    - - - -

tOtal cOmPReHenSiVe incOme
  FOR tHe Financial YeaR  20,037 20,453 6,158 4,319

tOtal cOmPReHenSiVe incOme
  attRiBUtaBle tO:-     
  Owners of the Company  20,037 20,453 6,158 4,319

PROFit aFteR taXatiOn
  attRiBUtaBle tO:-     
  Owners of the Company  20,037 20,453 6,158 4,319

eaRninGS PeR SHaRe (Sen) 24    
- Basic      13 13  
- Diluted      N/A N/A

N/A - Not applicable
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         ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
                       NON-DISTRIBUTABLE      DISTRIBUTABLE
      SHaRe meRGeR RetaineD tOtal
      caPital DeFicit PROFitS eQUitY
     nOte Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

tHe GROUP

Balance at 1.7.2012   80,000 (44,365) 88,851 124,486

Profit after taxation/Total comprehensive
  income for the financial year  - - 20,453 20,453

Distributions to owners of the Company: 
- Dividends   25 - - (5,600) (5,600)

Balance at 30.6.2013/1.07.2013  80,000 (44,365) 103,704 139,339
     
Profit after taxation/Total comprehensive
  income for the financial year  - - 20,037 20,037

Distributions to owners of the Company:
- Dividends   25 - - (6,400) (6,400)

Balance at 30.6.2014  80,000 (44,365) 117,341 152,976

                               NON-DISTRIBUTABLE     DISTRIBUTABLE
       SHaRe RetaineD tOtal
       caPital PROFitS eQUitY
     nOte  Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

tHe cOmPanY

At 1.7.2012     80,000 5,132 85,132

Profit after taxation/Total comprehensive
  income for the financial year   - 4,319 4,319

Distributions to owners of the Company:    
- Dividends    25  - (5,600) (5,600)

At 30.6.2013/1.7.2013   80,000 3,851 83,851

Profit after taxation/Total comprehensive
  income for the financial year   - 6,158 6,158

Distributions to owners of 
  the Company:
- Dividends    25  - (6,400) (6,400)

Balance at 30.6.2014   80,000 3,609 83,609

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014

      tHe GROUP tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013 2014 2013
     nOte Rm’000 Rm’000  Rm’000 Rm’000

caSH FlOWS FROm/(FOR)
  OPeRatinG actiVitieS

Profit before taxation  27,402 27,680 6,408 4,781

Adjustments for:-      
Depreciation of property, plant and
  equipment    3,204 3,115 2 3
Writedown of inventories   932 453 - -
Reversal of inventories written down  (84) (216) - -
Interest expense   1,129 853 - -
Plant and equipment written off  23 192 - -
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment  (56) (9) - -
Dividend income   - - (5,500) (4,190)
Interest income   (769) (627) (741) (839)
Allowance for  impairment losses on trade
  receivables     892 33 - -
Writeoff of trade receivables  - 20 - -
Unrealised loss/(gain) on foreign exchange  276 (18) - -

Operating profit/(loss) before working
  capital changes   32,949 31,476 169 (245)
Increase in inventories  (10,859) (4,126) - -
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other
  receivables    (11,577) (7,583) 11 (18)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 2,820 166 5 (70)
(Increase)/Decrease in amount owing by
  subsidiaries    - - (86) 59

caSH  FlOWS FROm/(FOR) OPeRatinG
  actiVitieS    13,333 19,933 99 (274)
Income tax paid   (7,370) (6,512) (198) (156)
Interest paid    (1,119) (843) - -

net caSH FROm/(FOR) OPeRatinG
  actiVitieS caRRieD FORWaRD  4,844 12,578 (99) (430)
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      tHe GROUP tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013 2014 2013
     nOte Rm’000 Rm’000  Rm’000 Rm’000

net caSH FROm/(FOR) OPeRatinG
  actiVitieS BROUGHt FORWaRD  4,844 12,578 (99) (430)

caSH FlOWS (FOR)/FROm      
  inVeStinG actiVitieS     
Interest received   769 627 741 839
Dividend received   - - 5,500 3,892
Additional investment in subsidiaries  - - - (2,650)
Purchase of plant and equipment  (7,236) (2,712) - -
Proceeds from disposal of plant and
 equipment    56 50 - -

net caSH (FOR)/FROm 
  inVeStinG actiVitieS  (6,411) (2,035) 6,241 2,081

caSH FlOWS (FOR)/FROm
  FinancinG actiVitieS
Drawdown of  bankers’ acceptances  1,766 3,311  -  -
(Advances to)/Repayment from subsidiaries  - - (4,518) 10,520
Dividends paid    (6,400) (2,400) (6,400) (2,400)

net caSH (FOR)/FROm FinancinG
  actiVitieS    (4,634) 911 (10,918) 8,120

net (DecReaSe)/incReaSe in caSH
  anD caSH eQUiValentS  (6,201) 11,454 (4,776) 9,771

caSH anD caSH eQUiValentS at 
  BeGinninG OF tHe Financial YeaR  41,360 29,906 25,521 15,750

caSH anD caSH eQUiValentS at enD     
  OF tHe Financial YeaR 26 35,159 41,360 20,745 25,521

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (cont’d)
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014

1. GeneRal inFORmatiOn

 The Company is incorporated as a public company limited by shares under the Companies Act 1965 in 
Malaysia. 

 The registered office is located at Suite 13A.01(A), Level 13A, Wisma Goldhill, 67, Jalan Raja Chulan, 
50200 Kuala Lumpur.

 The principal place of business is located at Lot No. PT 16690 - 16692, Jalan Permata 2, Arab-
Malaysian Industrial Park, 71800 Nilai, Negeri Sembilan.

 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a 
resolution of the directors dated 21 October 2014.

2. PRinciPal actiVitieS

 The Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding and the provision of 
management services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 6 to the financial 
statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the 
financial year.

3. HOlDinG cOmPanY

 The holding company is Casatex Cosmo Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in Malaysia. 

4. BaSiS OF PRePaRatiOn 

 The financial statements of the Group are prepared under the historical cost convention and modified 
to include other bases of valuation as disclosed in other sections under significant accounting policies, 
and in compliance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.

(a) During the current financial year, the Group has adopted the following new accounting standards 
and interpretations (including the consequential amendments, if any):-

mFRSs and ic interpretations (including the consequential amendments)
MFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
MFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
MFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
MFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
MFRS 119 (2011) Employee Benefits
MFRS 127 (2011) Separate Financial Statements
MFRS 128 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
Amendments to MFRS 7: Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 11 and MFRS 12: Transition Guidance
IC Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2009 – 2011 Cycle

 The adoption of the above accounting standards and interpretations (including the consequential 
amendments) did not have any material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

4. BaSiS OF PRePaRatiOn (cOnt’D)

(b) The Group has not applied in advance the following accounting standards and interpretations 
(including the consequential amendments, if any) that have been issued by the Malaysian 
Accounting Standards Board (MASB) but are not yet effective for the current financial year:-

mFRSs and ic interpretations (including the consequential amendments) effective Date
MFRS 9 (2009) Financial Instruments )
MFRS 9 (2010) Financial Instruments ) To be
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Hedge Accounting and Amendments to ) announced
  MFRS 7, MFRS 9 and MFRS 139) ) by MASB
Amendments to MFRS 9 and MFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of MFRS 9 )
  and Transition Disclosures )
MFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts  1 January 2016
MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers  1 January 2017
Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 127 (2011):
  Investment Entities  1 January 2014
Amendments to MFRS 11 : Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
  Joint Operations   1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 138: Clarification of Acceptable 
  Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation  1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 141: Agriculture – Bearer Plants  1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 119: Defined Benefit Plans – Employee Contributions  1 July 2014
Amendments to MFRS 132: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
  Liabilities  1 January 2014
Amendments to MFRS 136: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for 
  Non-financial Assets  1 January 2014
Amendments to MFRS 139: Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of 
  Hedge Accounting  1 January 2014
IC Interpretation 21 Levies  1 January 2014
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2010 – 2012 Cycle  1 July 2014
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2011 – 2013 Cycle  1 July 2014

 The above accounting standards and interpretations (including the consequential amendments) 
are not relevant to the Group’s operations except as follows:-

 MFRS 9 (2009) introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial 
assets. Subsequently, this MFRS 9 was amended in year 2010 to include requirements for the 
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition (known as MFRS 9 
(2010)). Generally, MFRS 9 replaces the parts of MFRS 139 that relate to the classification and 
measurement of financial instruments. MFRS 9 divides all financial assets into 2 categories - 
those measured at amortised cost and those measured at fair value, based on the entity’s business 
model for managing its financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the 
instruments.  For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the MFRS 139 requirement. An 
entity choosing to measure a financial liability at fair value will present the portion of the change in 
its fair value due to changes in the entity’s own credit risk in other comprehensive income rather 
than within profit or loss. Accordingly, there will be no material financial impact on the financial 
statements of the Group upon its initial application but may impact its future disclosures.

 The amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 127 (2011) require investment entities to 
measure particular subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss instead of consolidating them. 
The Company is an investment entity whose business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns 
from capital appreciation, investment income or both.  Accordingly, the Group will deconsolidate 
its subsidiaries upon the initial application of these amendments and to fair value the investments 
in accordance with MFRS 139. Accordingly, there will be no financial impact on the financial 
statements of the Group upon its initial application but may impact its future disclosures. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

4. BaSiS OF PRePaRatiOn (cOnt’D)

 The amendments to MFRS 132 provide the application guidance for criteria to offset financial 
assets and financial liabilities. Accordingly, there will be no financial impact on the financial 
statements of the Group upon its initial application but may impact its future disclosures. 

 The amendments to MFRS 136 remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable amount when 
a cash-generating unit (CGU) contains goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives 
but there has been no impairment. Accordingly, there will be no financial impact on the financial 
statements of the Group upon its initial application but may impact its future disclosures. 

5. SiGniFicant accOUntinG POlicieS

(a) critical accounting estimates and Judgements

 Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the directors and management and are 
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and judgements that 
affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures, and have a significant 
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets,  liabilities, income and 
expenses are discussed below:-

(i) Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

 The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges for 
the property, plant and equipment are based on commercial and production factors which 
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitors’ actions in 
response to the market conditions.

 The Group anticipates that the residual values of its property, plant and equipment will be 
significant and have been taken into consideration for the computation of the depreciable 
amount. 

 Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact the 
economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation 
charges could be revised. 

(ii) Income Taxes

 There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination 
may be different from the initial estimate. The Group recognised tax liabilities based on its 
understanding of the prevailing tax laws and estimates of whether such taxes will be due in 
the ordinary course of business. Where the final outcome of these matters is different from 
the amounts that were initially recognised, such difference will impact the income tax and 
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

5. SiGniFicant accOUntinG POlicieS (cOnt’D)

(a) critical accounting estimates and Judgements (cont’d)

(iii) Impairment of Non-financial Assets

 When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the 
value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the management 
is required to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating 
unit and also to apply a suitable discount rate in order to determine the present value of 
those cash flows. 

(iv) Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables

 An impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that a financial asset 
is impaired. Management specifically reviews its loans and receivables financial assets 
and analyses historical bad debts, customer concentrations, customer creditworthiness, 
current economic trends and changes in the customer payment terms when making a 
judgment to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses. Where there is 
objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated 
based on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. If the 
expectation is different from the estimation, such difference will impact the carrying value 
of receivables.

(v) Write-down of Inventories

 Reviews are made periodically by management on damaged, obsolete and slow-moving 
inventories. These reviews require judgement and estimates. Possible changes in these 
estimates could result in revisions to the valuation of inventories.

(vi) Revaluation of Properties

 Certain properties of the Group are reported at valuation which is based on valuations 
performed by independent professional valuers.

 The independent professional valuers have exercised judgement in determining factors 
used in the valuation process. Also, judgement has been applied in estimating prices for 
less readily observable external parameters. Other factors such as model assumptions, 
market dislocations and unexpected correlations can also materially affect these estimates 
and the resulting valuation estimates.

(vii) Impairment of Goodwill

 Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and at other times when such indicators 
exist. This requires management to estimate the expected future cash flows of the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill is allocated and to apply a suitable discount rate in 
order to determine the present value of those cash flows. The future cash flows are most 
sensitive to budgeted gross margins, growth rates estimated and discount rate used. If the 
expectation is different from the estimation, such difference will impact the carrying value 
of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

5. SiGniFicant accOUntinG POlicieS (cOnt’D)

(a) critical accounting estimates and Judgements (cont’d)

(viii) Fair Value Estimates for Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities

 The Group carries certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires 
extensive use of accounting estimates and judgement. While significant components of fair 
value measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence, the amount of 
changes in fair value would differ if the Group uses different valuation methodologies. Any 
changes in fair value of these assets and liabilities would affect profit and/or equity.

(b) Financial instruments
 
 Financial instruments are recognised in the statements of financial position when the Group has 

become a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

 Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance 
of the contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial 
instrument classified as a liability, are reported as an expense or income. Distributions to 
holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity.

 Financial instruments are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and 
intends to settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

 A financial instrument is recognised initially at its fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument (other than a financial 
instrument at fair value through profit or loss) are added to/deducted from the fair value on 
initial recognition, as appropriate. Transaction costs on the financial instrument at fair value 
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

 Financial instruments recognised in the statements of financial position are disclosed in the 
individual policy statement associated with each item.

(i) Financial Assets 

 On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as either financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables financial assets, 
or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. 

• Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

 Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
when the financial asset is either held for trading or is designated to eliminate or 
significantly reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise 
arise. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as 
hedges.

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any 
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. Dividend 
income from this category of financial assets is recognised in profit or loss when the 
Company’s right to receive payment is established.

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as current 
or non-current. Financial assets that are held primarily for trading purposes are 
presented as current whereas financial assets that are not held primarily for trading 
purposes are presented as current or non-current based on the settlement date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

5. SiGniFicant accOUntinG POlicieS (cOnt’D)

(b) Financial instruments (cont’d)

(i) Financial Assets (Cont’d)

• Held-to-maturity Investments

 Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments and fixed maturities that the management has the positive 
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment loss, with 
revenue recognised on an effective yield basis.

 Held-to-maturity investments are classified as non-current assets, except for those 
having maturity within 12 months after the reporting date which are classified as 
current assets.

• Loans and Receivables Financial Assets

 Trade receivables and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that 
are not quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables financial 
assets. Loans and receivables financial assets are measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method, less any impairment loss. Interest income is recognised 
by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the 
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

 Loans and receivables financial assets are classified as current assets, except for 
those having settlement dates later than 12 months after the reporting date which are 
classified as non-current assets.

• Available-for-sale Financial Assets

 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are 
designated in this category or are not classified in any of the other categories.

 After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are remeasured to their 
fair values at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses arising from changes 
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the 
fair value reserve, with the exception of impairment losses. On derecognition, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the fair value reserve is reclassified 
from equity into profit or loss. 

 Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss 
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

 Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are 
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

 Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets unless they 
are expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date.

(ii) Financial Liabilities

 All financial liabilities are initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs 
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method other 
than those categorised as fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

5. SiGniFicant accOUntinG POlicieS (cOnt’D)

(b) Financial instruments (cont’d)

(ii) Financial Liabilities (Cont’d)

 Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are either 
held for trading or are designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or 
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise. Derivatives are also classified as held 
for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

 Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional 
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

(iii) Equity Instruments

 Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue 
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from proceeds.

 Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when approved for appropriation.

(iv) Derecognition

 A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights 
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or the financial asset is transferred to 
another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. 
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the 
sum of the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability 
assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in equity is recognised 
in profit or loss.

 A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.  On derecognition of 
a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.  

(c) Functional and Foreign currencies

(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

 The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are presented in the currency 
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates, which is the functional 
currency. 

 The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia, which is the 
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and Balances

 Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into the respective functional currencies 
on initial recognition, using the exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction 
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period are translated at 
the rates ruling as of that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated using 
exchange rates that existed when the values were determined. All exchange differences are 
recognised in profit or loss. 
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(d) Basis of consolidation

 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its 
subsidiaries made up to the end of the reporting period.

 Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Group. The Group controls 
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with 
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group up to 
the effective date on which control ceases, as appropriate.

 The acquisitions resulted in a business combination involving common control entities is outside 
the scope of MFRS 3. The merger accounting is used by the Group to account for such common 
control business combinations.

(i) merger accounting for common control business combinations

 A business combination involving entities under common control is a business combination 
in which all the combining entities or subsidiaries are ultimately controlled by the same 
party and parties both before and after the business combination, and that control is not 
transitory.

 Subsidiaries acquired which have met the criteria for pooling of interest are accounted for 
using merger accounting principles. Under the merger method of accounting, the results 
of the subsidiaries are presented as if the merger had been effected throughout the current 
financial year. 

 The assets and liabilities combined are accounted for based on the carrying amounts from 
the perspective of the common control shareholder at the date of transfer. No amount is 
recognised in respect of goodwill and excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value 
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the 
time of the common control business combination to the extent of the continuation of the 
controlling party and parties’ interests.

 
 When the merger method is used, the cost of investment in the Company’s books is recorded 

at the nominal value of shares issued. The difference between the carrying value of the 
investment and the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries is treated as a merger 
deficit or merger reserve as applicable. The results of the subsidiaries being merged are 
included for the full financial year.

(ii) acquisition method of accounting for non-common control Business combinations

 Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. Under the 
acquisition method, the consideration transferred for acquisition of a subsidiary is the 
fair value of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by 
the Group at the acquisition date. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of 
any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs, other than the costs to issue debt or equity securities, are recognised in profit 
or loss when incurred.

 In a business combination achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree 
are remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. 



59Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad
A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

5. SiGniFicant accOUntinG POlicieS (cOnt’D)

(d) Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

 (ii) acquisition method of accounting for non-common control Business combinations 
 (cont’d)

 Non-controlling interests in the acquiree may be initially measured either at fair value 
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s 
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.  The choice of measurement basis is made 
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. 

(iii) non-controlling interests

 Non-controlling interests are presented within equity in the consolidated statement of 
financial position, separately from the equity attributable to owners of the Company. Profit 
or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of 
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed 
to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a 
deficit balance. 

 At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the 
amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of 
subsequent changes in equity

(iv) changes in Ownership interests in Subsidiaries Without change of control

 All changes in the parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss 
of control are accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount by 
which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of consideration paid or 
received is recognised directly in equity of the Group.

(v) loss of control

 Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group recognises any gain or loss on disposal 
in profit or loss which is calculated as the difference between:-

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any 
retained interest in the former subsidiary; and

(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the 
former subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

 Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the former 
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets 
or liabilities were disposed of (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to 
retained profits). The fair value of any investments retained in the former subsidiary at the 
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent 
accounting under MFRS 139 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an 
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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(e) Goodwill 

 Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The carrying value 
of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired. The impairment value of 
goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill 
is not reversed in a subsequent period.

 Under the acquisition method, any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration 
transferred in the business combination, the amount of non-controlling interests recognised 
and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over 
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition is 
recorded as goodwill. 

 Where the latter amount exceeds the former, after reassessment, the excess represents a 
bargain purchase gain and is recognised as a gain in profit or loss.

(f) investments in Subsidiaries

 Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost in the statement of financial position of the 
Company and are reviewed for impairment at the end of the reporting period if events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that their carrying values may not be recoverable. The cost of the 
investments includes transaction costs.

 On the disposal of the investments in subsidiaries, the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the investments is recognised in profit or loss.

 (g) Property, Plant and equipment

 Property, plant and equipment, other than freehold land, are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is stated at cost less impairment 
losses, if any and is not depreciated.

 Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the depreciable amount of the 
assets over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation of an asset does not cease when the asset 
becomes idle or is retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated. The principal 
annual rates of depreciation and residual values are as follows:

                         Depreciation Rate   Residual Value

  Buildings    3%  -
  Plant and machinery   10%  -
  Motor vehicles   20%  5% - 20%
  Office equipment   10% - 25%  -
  Electrical appliances   20%  -
  Furniture and fittings   10%  -
  Renovation   20%  -
  Factory and warehouse equipment   10% -15%  -

 The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if 
appropriate, at the end of the reporting period to ensure that the amounts, method and periods 
of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption 
of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of the property, plant and equipment.



61Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad
A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

5. SiGniFicant accOUntinG POlicieS (cOnt’D)

 (g) Property, Plant and equipment (cont’d)

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when the cost is incurred and it is probable that the future economic benefits 
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of parts that are replaced is derecognised. The costs of the day-
to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 
Cost also comprises the initial estimate of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the 
site on which it is located for which the Group is obligated to incur when the asset is acquired, if 
applicable.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the 
asset is included in the income statements in the year the asset is derecognised.

 (h) impairment 

(i) Impairment of Financial Assets

 All financial assets (other than those categorised at fair value through profit or loss), are 
assessed at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence of 
impairment as a result of one or more events having an impact on the estimated future cash 
flows of the asset. For an equity instrument, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair 
value below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment. 

 An impairment loss in respect of held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables 
financial assets is recognised in profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at 
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

 An impairment loss in respect of available-for-sale financial assets is recognised in profit 
or loss and is measured as the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and 
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in 
the fair value reserve. In addition, the cumulative loss recognised in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in equity under fair value reserve, is reclassified from equity to 
profit or loss.

 With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, 
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of 
the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised 
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised. In respect of available-for-
sale equity instruments, impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not 
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss 
made is recognised in other comprehensive income. 

(ii) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

 The carrying values of assets, other than those to which MFRS 136 – Impairment of Assets 
does not apply, are reviewed at the end of each reporting period for impairment when there 
is an indication that the assets might be impaired. Impairment is measured by comparing 
the carrying values of the assets with their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount 
of the assets is the higher of the assets’ fair value less costs to sell and their value in use, 
which is measured by reference to discounted future cash flow.
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 (h) impairment (cont’d)

(ii) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets (Cont’d)

 An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the asset is carried 
at its revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation 
decrease to the extent of a previously recognised revaluation surplus for the same asset.

 In respect of assets other than goodwill, and when there is a change in the estimates used 
to determine the recoverable amount, a subsequent increase in the recoverable amount 
of an asset is treated as a reversal of the previous impairment loss and is recognised to 
the extent of the carrying amount of the asset that would have been determined (net of 
amortisation and depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised. The reversal is 
recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the asset is carried at its revalued amount. 
A reversal of an impairment loss on a revalued asset is credited to other comprehensive 
income. However, to the extent that an impairment loss on the same revalued asset was 
previously recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss, a reversal of that 
impairment loss is recognised as income in the statement of profit or loss. 

 (i) inventories

 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the 
first-in-first-out basis, and comprises the purchase price and incidentals incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress 
include the cost of materials, labour and an appropriate proportion of production overheads.

 Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completion 
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

 Where necessary, due allowance is made for all damaged, obsolete and slow-moving items.

 (j) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events, 
when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is the present value of the 
estimated expenditure required to settle the obligation.

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence 
will only be confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not 
recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or 
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

 A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then 
be recognised as a provision.

 A contingent asset is a probable asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed only by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly 
within the control of the Group.



63Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad
A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

5. SiGniFicant accOUntinG POlicieS (cOnt’D)

 (k) income taxes

 Income tax for the year comprises current and deferred tax. 

 Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for 
the year and is measured using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at 
the end of the reporting period.

 Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial 
statements.

 
 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences other than those that 

arise from goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s 
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the business combination costs 
or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business 
combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable 
profit.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses 
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits 
can be utilitised. The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future 
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to 
the same taxation authority.

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or 
loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transactions either 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business 
combination is included in the resulting goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the 
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the 
business combination costs. 

 (l) Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of property, plant and 
equipment are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets 
are ready for their intended use or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during 
extended periods in which active development is interrupted.

 All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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 (m) Operating Segments

 An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from 
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate 
to transactions with any of the Group’s other components.  An operating segment’s operating 
results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about 
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete 
financial information is available.

(n) cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits, bank 
overdrafts and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(o) employee Benefits

(i) Short-term Benefits

 Wages, salaries, paid annual leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are accrued in the 
period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group.

(ii) Defined Contribution Plans 

 The Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit or loss in 
the period to which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no 
further liability in respect of the defined contribution plans.

(p) Related Parties

A party is related to an entity (referred to as the “reporting entity”) if:-

(a)  A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that 
person:-

(i) has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
(ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of 

the reporting entity.
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(p) Related Parties (cont’d)

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:-

(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that 
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint 
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the 

third entity.
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the 

reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is 
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a) above.
(vii)  A person identified in (a)(i) above has significant influence over the entity or is a member 

of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

 Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected 
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(q) Fair Value measurements 

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether 
that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. The measurement 
assumes that the transaction takes place either in the principal market or in the absence of 
a principal market, in the most advantageous market. For non-financial asset, the fair value 
measurement takes into account a market’s participant’s ability to generate economic benefits 
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

 For financial reporting purposes, the fair value measurements are analysed into level 1 to level 
3 as follows:-

Level 1:  Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or  
  liability that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2:  Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are  
  observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3:  Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

 The transfer of fair value between levels is determined as of the date of the event or change in 
circumstances that caused the transfer.
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(r) Revenue Recognition

(i) Sale of Goods

 Revenue is recognised upon delivery of goods and customers’ acceptance, and where 
applicable, net of returns and trade discounts.

(ii) Interest Income

 Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, based on effective yield on the 
investments.

(iii) Dividend Income

 Dividends from subsidiaries are recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive is 
established.

(iv) Management Fees and Rental Income

 Management fees and rental income are recognised on an accrual basis.

6. inVeStmentS in SUBSiDiaRieS

       tHe cOmPanY
        2014 2013
        Rm’000 Rm’000

 Unquoted shares, at cost    57,565 57,565 

 Details of the subsidiaries, which are all incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:-

                   eFFectiVe
                  eQUitY inteReSt
 name OF tHe cOmPanieS 2014 2013 PRinciPal actiVitieS

 Monsieur (M) Sdn. Bhd. 100% 100% Retailing of home linen and homeware.

 Syarikat Yoong Onn Sdn. Bhd.  100% 100% Distribution and trading of home linen and  
         homeware.
   
 Elegant Total Home Sdn. Bhd.  100% 100% Distribution and trading of home linen and  
         homeware.
   
 Sleep Focus Sdn. Bhd.  100% 100% Design and manufacture of home linen and  
         bedding accessories and trading of home linen.
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7. PROPeRtY, Plant anD eQUiPment

       WRitten
     at   OFF/  DePReciatiOn at
     1.7.2013 aDDitiOnS DiSPOSalS cHaRGe 30.6.2014
 tHe GROUP  Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Net Book Value      

 Freehold land  8,650 5,898 - - 14,548
 Buildings   19,974 - - (633) 19,341
 Plant and machinery 1,069 70 - (196) 943
 Factory and warehouse
   equipment   1,603 65 - (305) 1,363
 Motor vehicles  1,994 352     - (553) 1,793
 Office equipment 1,808 585 (8) (653) 1,732
 Electrical appliances 680 21     - (195) 506
 Renovation  1,172 79     - (369) 882
 Furniture and fittings 1,934 166 (15) (300) 1,785

 Total   38,884 7,236 (23) (3,204) 42,893

       WRitten
     at   OFF/  DePReciatiOn at
     1.7.2012 aDDitiOnS DiSPOSalS cHaRGe 30.6.2013
 tHe GROUP  Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Net Book Value      

 Freehold land  8,650 - - - 8,650
 Buildings   20,371 24 (31) (390) 19,974
 Plant and machinery 963 364 - (258) 1,069
 Factory and warehouse
   equipment  1,833 70 - (300) 1,603
 Motor vehicles  2,722 - (38) (690) 1,994
 Office equipment 1,549 889 (25) (605) 1,808
 Electrical appliances 553 323 (4) (192) 680
 Renovation  1,087 500 (27) (388) 1,172
 Furniture and fittings 1,792 542 (108) (292) 1,934

 Total   39,520 2,712 (233) (3,115) 38,884
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7. PROPeRtY, Plant anD eQUiPment (cOnt’D)

        accUmUlateD net BOOK
       at cOSt DePReciatiOn ValUe
 tHe GROUP    Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 At 30 June 2014   

 Freehold land    14,548 - 14,548
 Buildings     21,104 (1,763) 19,341
 Plant and machinery   6,182 (5,239) 943
 Factory and warehouse equipment   2,452 (1,089) 1,363
 Motor vehicles    4,919 (3,126) 1,793
 Office equipment   4,368 (2,636) 1,732
 Electrical appliances   1,396 (890) 506
 Renovation    3,807 (2,925) 882
 Furniture and fittings   3,156 (1,371) 1,785

       61,932 (19,039) 42,893

 At 30 June 2013   
   
 Freehold land    8,650 - 8,650
 Buildings     21,104 (1,130) 19,974
 Plant and machinery   6,112 (5,043) 1,069
 Factory and warehouse equipment   2,390 (787) 1,603
 Motor vehicles    4,718 (2,724) 1,994
 Office equipment   3,839 (2,031) 1,808
 Electrical appliances   1,375 (695) 680
 Renovation    3,728 (2,556) 1,172
 Furniture and fittings   3,024 (1,090) 1,934

       54,940 (16,056) 38,884

       at DePReciatiOn at
       1.7.2013 cHaRGe 30.6.2014
 tHe cOmPanY   Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Net Book Value   

 Office equipment   3 (2) 1

       at DePReciatiOn at
       1.7.2012 cHaRGe 30.6.2013
 tHe cOmPanY   Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Net Book Value   

 Office equipment   6 (3) 3
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7. PROPeRtY, Plant anD eQUiPment (cOnt’D)

        accUmUlateD net BOOK
       at cOSt DePReciatiOn ValUe
       Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 At 30 June 2014   

 Office equipment   12 (11) 1

        accUmUlateD net BOOK
       at cOSt DePReciatiOn ValUe
       Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 At 30 June 2013   

 Office equipment   12 (9) 3

8. GOODWill 

 The goodwill relates to the retailing segment. The Group reviews goodwill for impairment annually in 
accordance with its accounting policy.

 The Group has assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill using the value-in-use approach and is 
based on the financial budgets approved by management. The management has projected cash flows 
for a period of one year. The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows:-

(a) Budgeted revenue Sales growth rate of 20% is used based on the expected demand of 
home furnishing products to be derived from both existing and future 
boutiques in the budgeted period. 

(b) Budgeted gross margin Budgeted gross profit margin of 55% is determined based on the 
historical track record and after considering domestic economic 
conditions. 

(c) Discount rate The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to 
the industry. 
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9. inVentORieS

       tHe GROUP
        2014 2013
        Rm’000 Rm’000

 At cost :-   
 Raw materials     13,193 12,315
 Work in progress    2,138 2,890
 Finished goods    46,678 36,471
 Stock-in-transit    1,367 2,647

        63,376 54,323

 At net realisable value:-
 Raw materials     2,433 1,526
 Finished goods    1,425 1,374

        3,858 2,900

 Total inventories    67,234 57,223

 Recognise in profit or loss:-   
   
 Inventories recognised as cost of sales    109,048 95,736
 Amount written down to net realisable value   932 453
 Reversal of inventory written down    84 216

10. tRaDe ReceiVaBleS

       tHe GROUP
        2014 2013
        Rm’000 Rm’000

 Trade receivables    43,723 34,694
 Allowance for impairment losses    (927) (45)

        42,796 34,649

 Allowance for impairment losses:
 At 1 July 2013/2012    (45) (13)
 Addition during the financial year    (892) (33)
 Written off during the financial year    10 1

        (927) (45)

 The Group’s normal credit terms of trade receivables range from 30 to 120 days. Other credit terms 
are assessed and approved on a case-by-case basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

11. OtHeR ReceiVaBleS, DePOSitS anD PRePaYmentS

 Included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments of the Group is an amount of RM5,821,988 
(2013 – RM4,126,678), being deposits made to suppliers for future supply of materials and finished 
goods.

 These deposits shall be recovered by way of set-off against the supply of materials and finished 
goods.

12. amOUnt OWinG BY SUBSiDiaRieS

 The amount owing by subsidiaries is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable 
on demand, except for an amount of RM8,500,000 (2013 - RM4,000,000) which bore an interest rate 
of 3.00% (2013 - 3.00%) per annum in accordance with the commercial bank’s 1 month fixed deposit 
rate. The amounts are to be settled in cash.

13. SHORt-teRm inVeStment

      tHe GROUP tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013 2014 2013
      Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Fixed income trust fund, at fair value  12,000 10,000 12,000 10,000

 At market value  12,000 10,000 12,000 10,000

 The investment in fixed income trust fund represents investment in highly liquid money market, which 
is readily convertible to a known amount of cash. The effective interest rate is approximately 2.89% 
(2013 – 2.74%) per annum. The short-term investment is designated as available-for-sale and is 
measured at fair value.

14. DePOSitS WitH Financial inStitUtiOnS

 The effective interest rates of the deposits with financial institutions at the end of the reporting period 
ranged from 2.10% to 3.30% (2013 - 2.35% to 3.25%) per annum. The deposits have maturity periods 
ranging from 1 to 30 days (2013 - 1 to 90 days).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

15. SHaRe caPital

                         tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013
     Par number of   number of
     Value shares  shares
      ’000 Rm’000 ’000 Rm’000

 Authorised:      
 At 30 June 2014/2013 0.50 200,000 100,000 200,000 100,000

 Issued and Fully Paid-Up:     
 At 30 June 2014/2013 0.50 160,000 80,000 160,000 80,000

16. meRGeR DeFicit

 The merger deficit relates to the subsidiaries which were consolidated under the merger method of 
accounting.

 The merger deficit arose from the difference between the nominal value of shares issued for the 
acquisition of the subsidiaries amounting to RM47,414,628 and the nominal value of the shares 
acquired of RM3,050,000.

17. RetaineD PROFitS

 Under the single tier tax system, tax on the Company’s profits is the final tax and accordingly, any 
dividends to the shareholders are not subject to tax.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

18. DeFeRReD taX liaBilitieS

       tHe GROUP
        2014 2013
        Rm’000 Rm’000

 At 1 July 2013/2012    2,062 1,874
 Recognised in profit or loss (Note 23)    (460) 188

 At 30 June 2014/2013    1,602 2,062

 The deferred tax liabilities are attributable to the following:-

       tHe GROUP
        2014 2013
        Rm’000 Rm’000

 Surpluses on revaluation of properties    1,456 1,505
 Accelerated capital allowances on qualifying costs of property, plant and
   equipment     1,122 1,338
 Other temporary differences    (976) (781)

        1,602 2,062

19. tRaDe PaYaBleS

 The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 30 to 120 days.

20. SHORt-teRm BORROWinGS

       tHe GROUP
        2014 2013
        Rm’000 Rm’000

 Bankers’ acceptances (unsecured)    25,890 24,124

 The bankers’ acceptances at the end of the reporting period bore interest rates ranging from 4.12% 
to 4.76% (2013 – 4.22% to 5.19%) per annum.

21.  ReVenUe 

      tHe GROUP tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013 2014 2013
      Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Sale of goods   197,927 178,607 - -
 Management fee  - - 946 448
 Dividend income  - - 5,500 4,190

      197,927 178,607 6,446 4,638
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

22. PROFit BeFORe taXatiOn

      tHe GROUP tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013 2014 2013
      Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Profit before taxation is arrived at after
   charging/(crediting):

 Writedown of inventories  932 453 -   -
 Reversal of inventories written down  (84) (216) - -
 Allowance for impairment losses on trade
   receivables   892 33 - -
 Writeoff of trade receivables  - 20 - -
 Audit fee:       
 - for the financial year  125 115 31 27
 - under/(over) provision in the previous
     financial year  17 (2) 4 (2)
 Directors’ remuneration:     
 - non-fee emoluments  1,191 1,105 17 18
 - fee     165 156 165 156
 - defined contribution plans  141 130 - -
 - estimated non-monetary benefits-in-kind 26 48 - -
 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,204 3,115 2 3
 Interest expense:     
 - bankers’ acceptances  1,118 842 - -
 - others    11 11 - -
 Plant and equipment written off  23 192 - -
 Rental of premises  5,103 4,904 - -
 Staff costs:      
 - short-term benefits  29,705 27,206 281 253
 - defined contribution plans  2,492 2,221 32 29
 - estimated non-monetary benefits-in-kind 70 69 - -
 (Gain)/Loss on foreign exchange:     
 - realised    (451) 46 - -
 - unrealised   276 (18) - -
 Gain on disposal of plant and equipment   (56) (9) - -
 Interest income   (769) (627) (741) (839)
 Dividend income  - - (5,500) (4,190)
 Rental income   (42) (12) -   -
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For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

23. incOme taX eXPenSe

      tHe GROUP tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013 2014 2013
      Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Current tax expense:     
 - for the financial year  7,710 7,009 249 461
 - underprovision in the previous
     financial year  115 30 1 1

      7,825 7,039 250 462

 Deferred tax expense (Note 18):     
 - relating to reversal and origination of     
     temporary differences  (407) 163 - -
 - (over)/under provision in the previous
     financial year  (53) 25 -  -

      (460) 188 - -

      7,365 7,227 250 462

 During the current financial year, the statutory tax rate remained at 25%.

 A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the profit before taxation at the statutory tax rate 
to income tax expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the Company are as follows:-

      tHe GROUP tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013 2014 2013
      Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Profit before taxation   27,402 27,680 6,408 4,781

 Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%  6,850 6,920 1,602 1,195

 Tax effects of:-        
 Non-taxable gain  (1,467) (805) (1,435) (804)
 Non-deductible expenses  1,740 1,120 82 70
 Double deduction  (9) (9) - -
 Deferred tax assets not recognised for the
   financial year   200 - - -
 Utilisation of reinvestment allowances  (11) (54) - -
 Under/(over)provision in the previous
   financial year:    
 - current tax   115 30 1 1
 - deferred tax   (53) 25 - -

 Tax for the financial year  7,365 7,227 250 462

 The statutory tax rate will be reduced to 24% from the current financial year’s rate of 25%, effective 
year of assessment 2016.
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24. eaRninGS PeR SHaRe

 The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s profit after taxation attributable to 
owners of the Company of RM20,036,903 (2013 – RM20,453,803) by the number of ordinary shares in 
issue during the financial year of 160,000,000 (2013 - 160,000,000).

 The diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares 
outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

25. DiViDenDS

        tHe GROUP/
       tHe cOmPanY
        2014 2013
        Rm’000 Rm’000

 Recognised as distribution to owners:-
 - Final single tier dividend of 1.5 sen per ordinary share for
     the financial year ended 30 June 2012     - 2,400
 - Interim single tier dividend of 2.0 sen per ordinary share for 
     the financial year ended 30 June 2013     - 3,200
 - Final single tier dividend of 2.0 sen per ordinary share for
     the financial year ended 30 June 2013     3,200 -
 - Interim single tier dividend of 2.0 sen per ordinary share for
     the financial year ended 30 June 2014     3,200 -

        6,400 5,600

 Net dividend per share (sen)    4.0 3.5

26. caSH anD caSH eQUiValentS

 For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:-

      tHe GROUP tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013 2014 2013
      Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Cash and bank balances  7,929 4,126 215 91
 Deposits with financial institutions (Note 14) 15,230 27,234 8,530 15,430
 Short-term investment (Note 13)  12,000 10,000 12,000 10,000

      35,159 41,360 20,745 25,521
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27. DiRectORS’ RemUneRatiOn

      tHe GROUP tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013 2014 2013
      Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Executive:       
 - non-fee emoluments  1,174 1,087 - -
 - defined contribution plan  141 130 - -
 - estimated non-monetary benefits-in-kind 26 48 - -

      1,341 1,265 - -

 Non Executive:       
 - non-fee emoluments   17 18 17 18
 - fee     165 156 165 156

      182 174 182 174

 The aggregate amount of emoluments received and receivable by the directors of the Company during 
the financial year in bands of RM50,000 are as follows:-

        Directors’
      number of Directors’ Other
      Directors Fee emoluments total
 tHe GROUP    Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 2014 

 - Below RM50,000  3 114 12 126
 - Between RM50,001 and RM100,000  1 51 5 56
 - Between RM600,001 and RM650,000  1 - 620 620
 - Between RM700,001 and RM750,000  1 - 721 721

      6 165 1,358 1,523
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

27. DiRectORS’ RemUneRatiOn (cOnt’D)

        Directors’
      number of Directors’ Other
      Directors Fee emoluments total
 tHe GROUP    Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 2013 

 - Below RM50,000  3 108 14 122
 - Between RM50,001 and RM100,000  1 48 4 52
 - Between RM550,001 and RM600,000  1 - 586 586
 - Between RM650,001 and RM700,000  1 - 679 679

      6 156 1,283 1,439

 tHe cOmPanY

 2014

 - Below RM50,000  3 114 12 126
 - Between RM50,001 and RM100,000  1 51 5 56

      4 165 17 182

 2013

 - Below RM50,000  3 108 14 122
 -  Between RM50,001 and RM100,000  1 48 4 52

      4 156 18 174

 
28. RelateD PaRtY DiSclOSUReS

(a) For the purpose of the financial statements, the Group has related party relationships with:-
 

(i) its subsidiaries;

(ii) the directors and officers who are the key management personnel; and

(iii) entities controlled by the key management personnel/directors/substantial shareholders.
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For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

28. RelateD PaRtY DiSclOSUReS (cOnt’D)

(b) In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company 
carried out the following transactions with the related parties during the financial year:-

      tHe GROUP tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013 2014 2013
      Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Subsidiaries:       
 - Management fees receivable   - - 946 488
 - Interest income receivable  - - 161 369
 - Dividend income receivable  - - 5,500 4,190

 Related parties:     
 - Management fee payable to TanLee
     Management Services *  120 120 - -
 - Rental of premises from Yoon Fah Realty
     Sdn. Bhd. **   370 370 - -
 - Sale of goods to The Store Corporation 
     Berhad***   5,779 5,802 - -

* - TanLee Management Services is a sole proprietor and is wholly owned by a key management 
 personnel.

** - This company is an entity deemed to be controlled by certain directors of the Company.

*** - The company is deemed to be related by virtue of the common directorship of a director.

 (c) Key management personnel

       tHe GROUP
        2014 2013
        Rm’000 Rm’000

  Short-term employee benefits    3,103 2,798
  Defined contribution plans    373 335
  Estimated non-monetary benefits-in-kind   96 117

        3,572 3,250

 Included in the short-term employee benefits of the Group is an amount of RM1,341,387 (2013 - 
RM1,265,096) in respect of the remuneration payable to executive directors as disclosed in Note 
27 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

29. OPeRatinG SeGmentS 

 The Group has three reportable segments, as described below, which are the Group’s strategic 
business units. The strategic business units offer different products and services, and are managed 
separately. The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable 
segments:-

• Manufacturing   -  design and manufacturing of home linen and bedding accessories.

• Distribution and trading -  distribution and trading of home linen and homeware.

• Retailing   -  retailing of home linen and homeware.

      DiStRiBUtiOn   tHe
     manUFactURinG & tRaDinG RetailinG eliminatiOn GROUP
 2014    Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Inter-segment revenue 28,863 4,392 136 (33,391) -
 External revenue 33,157 133,802 30,968 - 197,927

 Total revenue  62,020 138,194 31,104 (33,391) 197,927

 Segment results 6,064 18,255 4,410 - 28,729
 Unallocated expenses     (198)

 Operating profits     28,531
 Finance costs   (618) (501) (10) - (1,129)

 Profit before taxation     27,402
 Income tax expense     (7,365)

 Profit after taxation     20,037

 Other information     
 Segment assets  71,595 83,130 15,657 - 170,382
 Unallocated assets     26,726

         197,108

 Segment liabilities 17,592 18,162 2,285 - 38,039
 Unallocated liabilities     6,093

         44,132
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29. OPeRatinG SeGmentS (cOnt’D)

      DiStRiBUtiOn   tHe
     manUFactURinG & tRaDinG RetailinG eliminatiOn GROUP
 2013    Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Inter-segment revenue 35,334 9,656 96 (45,086) -
 External revenue 28,969 122,721 26,917 - 178,607

 Total revenue  64,303 132,377 27,013 (45,086) 178,607

 Segment results 6,856 19,155 2,748 - 28,759
 Unallocated expenses     (226)

 Operating profits     28,533
 Finance costs   (481) (361) (11) - (853)

 Profit before taxation     27,680
 Income tax expense     (7,227)

 Profit after taxation     20,453

 Other information     
 Segment assets  63,822 75,389 14,052 - 153,263
 Unallocated assets     25,573

         178,836

 Segment liabilities 19,332 12,684 1,431 - 33,447
 Unallocated liabilities     6,050

         39,497
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

29. OPeRatinG SeGmentS (cOnt’D)

       DiStRiBUtiOn  tHe
                                                 manUFactURinG  & tRaDinG RetailinG GROUP
 2014     Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Capital expenditure  88 922 328 1,338
 Unallocated capital expenditure     5,898

         7,236

 Depreciation    938 1,484 780 3,202
 Unallocated depreciation     2

         3,204

 Writedown of inventories  141 580 127 848

 Interest income   (37) (142) (10) (189)
 Unallocated interest income      (580)

         (769)

 Interest expense  618 501 10 1,129

 2013 

 Capital expenditure  653 866 1,193 2,712

 Depreciation    796 1,602 714 3,112
 Unallocated depreciation     3

         3,115

 Writedown of inventories  126 57 54 237

 Interest income   (62) (87) (8) (157)
 Unallocated interest income      (470)

         (627)

 Interest expense  481 361 11 853
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For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

29. OPeRatinG SeGmentS (cOnt’D)

 GeOGRaPHical inFORmatiOn

 No financial information based on geographical location has been presented for non-current assets 
as these assets are located wholly in Malaysia.

 Revenue information based on the geographical location of customers respectively are as follows:-

       ReVenUe
        2014 2013
        Rm’000 Rm’000

 Malaysia      160,934 146,198
 Singapore     30,856 27,262
 Others      6,137 5,147

        197,927 178,607

 major customers

 The following are major customers with revenue equal to or more than 10% of the Group’s revenue:-

                              ReVenUe  SeGment
      2014 2013
      Rm’000 Rm’000

 A local departmental store  54,295 46,188 Distribution and trading.
 An overseas distributor  30,571  27,262 Manufacturing, 
          distribution and trading.

30. cOntinGent liaBilitieS

 The directors are of the opinion that provisions are not required in respect of the following corporate 
guarantees, as it is not probable that a future outflow of economic benefits will arise:-

      tHe GROUP tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013 2014 2013
      Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Unsecured:-      
 Corporate guarantee given to licensed banks
   for credit facilities granted to its subsidiaries - - 61,070 48,070
 Guarantee issued in favour of third parties  665 734 - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

31. FOReiGn eXcHanGe RateS

 The principal closing foreign exchange rates used (expressed on the basis of one unit of foreign 
currency to RM equivalent) for the translation of the foreign currency balances at the end of the 
reporting period are as follows:-

        2014 2013
        Rm Rm

 United States Dollar    3.21 3.17
 Singapore Dollar    2.57 2.50
 Euro       4.38 4.12

32. Financial inStRUmentS 

 The Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of market risk (including foreign currency risk, 
interest rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall financial 
risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise 
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. 

(a) Financial Risk management Policies

 The Group’s policies in respect of the major areas of treasury activity are as follows:-

(i) market Risk 

(i) Foreign Currency Risk 
 
 The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions and balances that are 

denominated in currencies other than Ringgit Malaysia. The currencies giving rise to 
this risk are primarily United States Dollar and Singapore Dollar. Foreign currency 
risk is monitored closely on an ongoing basis to ensure that the net exposure is at 
an acceptable level. On occasion, the Group enters into forward foreign currency 
contracts to hedge against its foreign currency risk.
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32. Financial inStRUmentS (cOnt’D)

(a) Financial Risk management Policies (cont’d)

(i) market Risk (cont’d)

(i) Foreign Currency Risk (Cont’d)
 
 The Group’s exposure to foreign currency as compared to its functional currency is as 

follows:-

       UniteD   
       StateS SinGaPORe 
       DOllaR DOllaR tOtal
    tHe GROUP   Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

    2014   
   
    Financial assets   
    Trade receivables   5,665 13,672 19,337
    Cash and bank balances   488 2,661 3,149

       6,153 16,333 22,486

    Financial liabilities   
    Trade payables   1,373 1 1,374

    currency exposure   
    Net financial assets   4,780 16,332 21,112

      UniteD    
      StateS  SinGaPORe 
      DOllaR eURO  DOllaR tOtal
    tHe GROUP  Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

    2013    
    
    Financial assets    
    Trade receivables  4,060 - 8,648 12,708
    Cash and bank balances  175 2 128 305
    
      4,235 2 8,776 13,013
    
    
    Financial liabilities    
    Trade payables  1,247 - - 1,247
    
    

    currency exposure    
    Net financial assets  2,988 2 8,776 11,766
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

32. Financial inStRUmentS (cOnt’D)

(a) Financial Risk management Policies (cont’d)

(i) market Risk (cont’d)

(i) Foreign Currency Risk (Cont’d)

 Foreign currency risk sensitivity analysis

 The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in 
the foreign currencies as at the end of the reporting period, with all other variables 
held constant:- 

        tHe GROUP tHe GROUP
        2014 2013
        increase/ increase/
        (Decrease) (Decrease)
        Rm’000 Rm’000

    effects on profit after taxation and equity 

    United States Dollar:    
    - strengthened by 5%    179 112
    - weakened by 5%    (179) (112)
    
    Singapore Dollar:    
    - strengthened by 5%    612 329
    - weakened by 5%    (612) (329)
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32. Financial inStRUmentS (cOnt’D)

(a) Financial Risk management Policies (cont’d)

(i) market Risk (cont’d)

(ii) Interest Rate Risk  

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s 
exposure to interest rate risk arises mainly from interest-bearing financial assets and 
liabilities. The Group’s policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available.  
Any surplus funds of the Group will be placed with licensed financial institutions to 
generate interest income. 

 Information relating to the Group’s exposure to the interest rate risk of the financial 
liabilities is disclosed in Note 32(a)(iii) to the financial statements.

 Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

 The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in 
the interest rates as at the end of the reporting period, with all other variables held 
constant:- 

        tHe GROUP tHe GROUP
        2014 2013
        increase/ increase/
        (Decrease) (Decrease)
        Rm’000 Rm’000

    effects on profit after taxation and equity   
    
    Increase of 100 basis points (bp)   10 98
    Decrease of 100 bp    (10) (98)

(iii) Equity Price Risk

 The Group does not have any quoted investments and hence is not exposed to equity 
price risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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32. Financial inStRUmentS (cOnt’D)

(a) Financial Risk management Policies (cont’d)

(ii) credit Risk

 The Group’s exposure to credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, arises mainly 
from trade and other receivables. The Group manages its exposure to credit risk by the 
application of credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures on an ongoing 
basis. For other financial assets (including quoted investments, cash and bank balances 
and derivatives), the Group minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit 
rating counterparties.

 The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred 
losses in respect of the trade and other receivables as appropriate. The main components 
of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant 
exposures, and a collective loss component established for groups of similar assets in 
respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified. Impairment is estimated by 
management based on prior experience and the current economic environment.

 Credit risk concentration profile

 The Group’s major concentration of credit risk relates to the amounts owing by two (2) 
customers which constituted approximately 52% of its trade receivables as at the end of the 
reporting period.  

 Exposure to credit risk

 As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk is 
represented by the carrying amount of the financial assets as at the end of the reporting 
period.

 The exposure of credit risk for trade receivables by geographical region is as follows:-

        tHe GROUP
        2014 2013
        Rm’000 Rm’000

   Malaysia    23,459 21,941
   Singapore    13,672 8,648
   Others    5,665 4,060

        42,796 34,649
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32. Financial inStRUmentS (cOnt’D)

(a) Financial Risk management Policies (cont’d)

(ii) credit Risk (cont’d)

   Ageing analysis

 The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at end of the reporting period is as 
follows:-

       GROSS inDiViDUal caRRYinG
       amOUnt imPaiRment ValUe
   tHe GROUP   Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

   2014 
  
   Not past due    33,728 - 33,728
   
   Past due:   
   - less than 3 months   6,658 - 6,658
   - 3 to 6 months   1,581 - 1,581
   - over 6 months   1,756 (927) 829

       43,723 (927) 42,796

   2013 

   Not past due    30,339 - 30,339
   
   Past due:   
   - less than 3 months   2,761 - 2,761
   - 3 to 6 months   820 (33) 787
   - over 6 months   774 (12) 762

       34,694 (45) 34,649

 At the end of the reporting period, trade receivables that are individually impaired were 
those in significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables 
are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancement.

 Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired

 The Group believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these trade 
receivables. They are substantially companies with good collection track record and no 
recent history of default. 

 Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

 A significant portion of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are regular 
customers that have been transacting with the Group. The Group uses ageing analysis 
to monitor the credit quality of the trade receivables.  Any receivables having significant 
balances past due or more than 180 days, which are deemed to have higher credit risk, are 
monitored individually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

32. Financial inStRUmentS (cOnt’D)

(a) Financial Risk management Policies (cont’d)

(iii) liquidity Risk

 Liquidity risk arises mainly from general funding and business activities. The Group practises 
prudent risk management by maintaining sufficient cash balances and the availability of 
funding through certain committed credit facilities.

 The following table sets out the maturity profile of the financial liabilities as at the end 
of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest 
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on the rates at the end of 
the reporting period):-

     WeiGHteD    
     aVeRaGe  cOntRactUal  
     eFFectiVe caRRYinG UnDiScOUnteD WitHin 1 – 5
     Rate amOUnt caSH FlOWS 1 YeaR YeaRS
   tHe GROUP % Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

   2014 

   Trade payables - 5,659 5,659 5,659 -
   Other payables
     and accruals - 6,576 6,576 6,397 179
   Dividend payable - 3,200 3,200 3,200 -
   Bankers’ acceptances 4.12-4.76 25,890 25,890 25,890 -

      41,325 41,325 41,146 179
     

   2013

   Trade payables - 2,734 2,734 2,734 -
   Other payables
     and accruals - 6,671 6,671 6,502 169
   Dividend payable - 3,200 3,200 3,200 -
   Bankers’ acceptances 4.22-5.19 24,124 24,124 24,124 -

      36,729 36,729 36,560 169
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

32. Financial inStRUmentS (cOnt’D)

(a) Financial Risk management Policies (cont’d)

(iii) liquidity Risk (cont’d)

     WeiGHteD   
     aVeRaGe  cOntRactUal 
     eFFectiVe caRRYinG UnDiScOUnteD WitHin
     Rate amOUnt caSH FlOWS 1 YeaR
  tHe cOmPanY % Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

  2014    

  Other payables and accruals - 86 86 86
  Dividend payable - 3,200 3,200 3,200

      3,286 3,286 3,286

  2013    

  Other payables and accruals - 81 81 81
  Dividend payable - 3,200 3,200 3,200

      3,281 3,281 3,281

(b) capital Risk management

 The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be able to maintain an 
optimal capital structure so as to support their businesses and maximise shareholders’ value. 
To achieve this objective, the Group may make adjustments to the capital structure in view of 
changes in economic conditions, such as adjusting the amount of dividend payment, returning of 
capital to shareholders or issuing new shares.

 The Group manages its capital based on debt-to-equity ratio. The Group’s strategies were 
unchanged from the previous financial year. The debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as net debt 
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as borrowings plus trade and other payables less 
cash and cash equivalents. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

32. Financial inStRUmentS (cOnt’D)

(b) capital Risk management (cont’d)

 There was no change in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial year.

       tHe GROUP
        2014 2013
        Rm’000 Rm’000
    
  Trade payables     5,659 2,734
  Other payables and accruals     6,576 6,671
  Dividend payable     3,200 3,200
  Bankers’ acceptances    25,890 24,124

        41,325 36,729

  Less: Short-term investment    (12,000) (10,000)
  Less: Deposits with financial institutions    (15,230) (27,234)
  Less: Cash and bank balances     (7,929) (4,126)

  Net debt      6,166 (4,631)

  Total equity    152,976 139,339

  Debt-to-equity ratio    0.04 Not applicable

 Under the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Practice Note No. 17/2005, the Company is required to 
maintain a consolidated shareholders’ equity (total equity attributable to owners of the Company) 
equal to or not less than the 25% of the issued and paid-up share capital and such shareholders’ 
equity is not less than RM40 million. The Company has complied with this requirement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

32. Financial inStRUmentS (cOnt’D)

(c) classification Of Financial instruments

      tHe GROUP tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013 2014 2013
      Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

  Financial assets

  Available-for-sale    
  Short-term investment  12,000 10,000 12,000 10,000

  Loans and receivables financial assets    
  Trade receivables  42,796 34,649 - -
  Other receivables and deposits   1,968 1,629 28 39
  Amount owing by subsidiaries  - - 8,622 4,018
  Deposits with financial institutions  15,230 27,234 8,530 15,430
  Cash and bank balances  7,929 4,126 215 91

      67,923 67,638 17,395 19,578

  Financial liabilities     

  Other financial liabilities     
  Bankers’ acceptances  25,890 24,124 - -
  Trade payables  5,659 2,734 - -
  Other payables and accruals  6,576 6,671 86 81
  Dividend payable  3,200 3,200 3,200 3,200

      41,325 36,729 3,286 3,281
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)
32
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Financial Year Ended 30 June 2014 (cont’d)

33. SUPPlementaRY inFORmatiOn – DiSclOSURe OF RealiSeD anD UnRealiSeD PROFitS/lOSSeS

 The breakdown of the retained profits of the Group and of the Company as at the end of the reporting 
period into realised and unrealised profits/(losses) are presented in accordance with the directive 
issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and prepared in accordance with Guidance on Special 
Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure 
Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian 
Institute of Accountants, as follows:- 

      tHe GROUP tHe cOmPanY
      2014 2013 2014 2013
      Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000 Rm’000

 Total retained profits        
 - realised    110,063 96,568 3,609 3,851
 - unrealised   8,494 10,610 - -

      118,557 107,178 3,609 3,851
 Less : Consolidated adjustments  (1,216) (3,474) - -

 At 30 June   117,341 103,704 3,609 3,851
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ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

1) Share Buy-Backs

 There was no share buy-backs by the Company during the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

2) Options, Warrants or convertible Securities

 There were no options, warrants or convertible securities issued during the financial year ended 30 
June 2014.

3) american Depository Receipt (aDR) or Global Depository Receipt (GDR) Programme

 The Company did not sponsor any ADR or GDR programme during the financial year ended 30 June 
2014.

4) Sanctions and/or Penalties 

 There were no sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the Company and its subsidiaries, Directors or 
management by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.

5) non-audit Fees

 There were no non-audit fees paid to the External Auditors, Messrs. Crowe Horwath by the Group 
during the financial year under review.

6) Variation in Results

 There were no variations of 10% or more between the audited results of the Group for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2014 and the unaudited results announced on 27 August 2014.

7) material contracts with Related Parties

 There were no material contracts entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries involving directors’ 
and major shareholders’ interest which were still subsisting as at the end of the financial year under 
review or which were entered into since the end of the previous financial year except as disclosed in 
note 28 of page 78 of the Financial Statements.
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8) corporate Social Responsibility

 The Group recognizes its role as a responsible corporate citizen and no company can exist by 
maximizing shareholders value alone. In this regards, the needs and interests of other stakeholders 
are also taken into consideration.

a) environment

 The Group has always complied with the relevant environmental legislation and promoting 
environmental awareness as part of its commitment to protect the environment and contribute 
towards sustainable development. 

b) Safety and Health

 The Group is committed to provide a safe and healthy working environment for all employees 
under the requirements of Health, Safety and Environment (“HSE”). We constantly ensure a safe 
and healthy working environment and keep ourselves updated with the latest HSE requirements 
and regulations through various training programmes.

c) charity Works and Donations to charitable Organisations

 The Company has made cash donations to Beautiful Gate Foundation For The Disabled , Malaysia 
Association For The Blind, Malaysia Association For The Prevention of Tuberculosis,  Monfort 
Youth Centre,  National Council For The Blind, Pucat Jagaan Rumah Anak-Anak Yatim/Miskin 
Tamman Baiduri,  Rumah Amal Cheshire Selangor,  Rumah Kebajikan Kanak-Kanak Shelter, 
The Salvation Army and Yayasan Jantung Malaysia.

d) employees

 The Group places strong emphasis on personal development and provides various training 
courses for its employees to enhance and upgrade their work skills for better opportunities of 
career advancements.

9) Profit Forecast/Profit Guarantee

 The Company did not provide any profit forecast/guarantee in any public documents during the 
financial year ended 30 June 2014.

10) Revaluation Policy of landed Properties

 The Group’s revaluation policy in respect of its freehold land and buildings is to revalue periodically, 
at least once in every three to five years.  Surpluses arising from the revaluation of the properties, 
net of deferred taxation, where applicable, are credited to a revaluation reserve.  Deficits arising from 
the revaluation, to the extent that they are not supported by any previous revaluation surpluses, are 
charged to the income statement.

 The revaluation policy for landed properties is detailed in Note 5(g) – property, plant and equipment 
and Note 5 (h) – Impairment of Fixed Assets of the Financial Statements in this Annual Report.

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION (cont’d)
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11) Recurrent Related Parties transactions

 The breakdown of the aggregate value of transactions conducted during the financial year ended 30 
June 2014 is as follows:-

 transacting   Related  amount of
 companies   transacting nature of transaction
 within the Group Parties transaction (Rm’000)

 Syarikat Yoong Onn  Yoon Fah Realty Rental of property 370
 Sdn Bhd. (“SYOSB“) Sdn Bhd  which is currently used 
      as SYOSB’s office 
      cum warehouse
 
 Syarikat Yoong Onn  The Store  Supply of home linen 5,536
  Sdn Bhd    Corporation products
     Berhad  
 
 Elegant Total Home The Store  Supply of home linen 243
 Sdn Bhd   Corporation products
     Berhad   

 At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 18 December 2014, the Company intends to 
seek its shareholders’ approval for the proposed shareholders’ ratification and proposed shareholders’ 
mandate for recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature, which are necessary 
for its day-to-day operations and in the ordinary course of business, with related parties. The details 
of the proposed shareholders’ ratification and proposed shareholders’ mandate to be sought is set 
out in the Circular to Shareholders dated 25 November 2014.

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION (cont’d)
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Authorised share capital : RM100,000,000
Issued and fully paid-up capital : RM80,000,000
Class of shares  : Ordinary shares of RM0.50 each
Voting rights   : One vote per ordinary share

analYSiS BY SiZe OF SHaReHOlDinGS

     nO. OF % OF nO. OF % OF
SiZe OF HOlDinGS  SHaReHOlDeRS SHaReHOlDeRS SHaReHOlDinGS iSSUeD caPital

Less than 100   33 2.60 1,235 *
100 to 1,000   471 37.09 152,498 0.09
1,001 to 10,000  449 35.35 2,206,538 1.38
10,001 to 100,000  228 17.95 7,801,575 4.88
100,001 to less than 5% of  88 6.93 65,837,923 41.15
issued shares 
5% and above of issued shares 1 0.08 84,000,231 52.50

tOtal    1,270 100.00 160,000,000 100.00

note :
*- negligible

SUBStantial SHaReHOlDeRS

name OF SHaReHOlDeR                           DiRect inteReSt                                   inDiRect inteReSt
            nO. OF SHaReS     %           nO. OF SHaReS            %

Casatex Cosmo Sdn Bhd 84,000,231 52.50 - -
Chew Hon Foong  - - 84,000,231 52.50 (a)
Chew Hon Keong  - - 84,000,231 52.50 (a)
Chew Hon Yoong  - - 84,000,231 52.50 (a)
Chew Hon Yoon  - - 84,000,231 52.50 (a)

note :
(a) - Deemed interest by virtue of his direct interest in Casatex Cosmo Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of 

Companies Act, 1965.

DiRectORS’ SHaReHOlDinGS

nO.    DiRectORS  DiRect inteReSt % inDiRect inteReSt %
     
1. Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff 273,333 0.17 27,999 0.02#
2. Chew Hon Foong - - 84,000,231 52.50 ^
3. Chew Hon Keong - - 84,000,231 52.50 ^
4. Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed - - - -
5.. Yeoh Chong Keng 144,000 0.09 - -
6. Lee Kim Seng  29,999 0.02 - -

note :
# -   Deemed interest via his wife and children’s direct interests.
^  - Deemed interest by virtue of his direct interest in Casatex Cosmo Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of 
 Companies Act, 1965.

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
As at 27 October 2014
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
As at 27 October 2014 (cont’d)

tHiRtY laRGeSt SHaReHOlDeRS aS PeR tHe RecORD OF DePOSitORS

     nO. OF  % OF iSSUeD
nO. name   SHaReS  SHaReS

1. Casatex Cosmo Sdn Bhd 84,000,231 52.50%
2. HLB Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd  7,866,666 4.92%
 Wang ShouHu (CUST.SIN91144-4)
3. HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd  6,997,700 4.37%
 Exempt AN for Credit Suisse (SG BR-TST-ASING)
4. Chan Fook Hong 5,333,333 3.33%
5. JF APEX Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd  3,333,333 2.08%
 Pledged Securities Account for Tan Sri Abu Sahid Bin Mohamed (Margin)
6. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 2,969,100 1.86%
 HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd for RHB-OSK small cap opportunity unit trust (3548)
7. Chew Swee Tee @ Chew Swee Lee 2,967,866 1.85%
8. Chuah Seng Boon 2,400,000 1.50%
9. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 1,765,000 1.10%
 HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd for RHB-OSK Equity Trust (3175)
10. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd  1,532,000 0.96%
 Maybank Trustees Berhad for RHB-OSK Dynamic Fund (200188)
11. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 1,500,500 0.94%
 HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd for RHB-OSK emerging opportunity unit trust (4611)
12. AllianceGroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd  1,431,800 0.89%
 Pledged Securities Account For Wong Yee Hui (8095789)
13. Chuah Seng Hooi 1,418,133 0.89%
14. Chuah Ling Ling  1,393,000 0.87%
15. Ng Yoong Sang 1,333,333 0.83%
16. Lee Chai Hua  1,200,000 0.75%
17. RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd  1,100,000 0.69%
 Amara Investment Management Sdn Bhd For Wong Yee Hui 
18. Lee Meng Yong 910,000 0.57%
19. Chow Siew Sen 873,200 0.55%
20. HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd  838,800 0.52%
 HSBC-FS for RHB-OSK Asean Megatrend Master Fund
21. Kok Foong Meng 707,233 0.44%
22. Lee Chai Hua  693,333 0.43%
23. DB (Malaysia) Nominee (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad 688,000 0.43%
 Deutsche Trustees Malaysia Berhad for
 Hong Leong Consumer Products Sector Fund
24. HLB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd  666,666 0.42%
 Pledged Securities Account for Tan Sri Abu Sahid Bin Mohamed
25. AllianceGroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd  578,100 0.36%
 Pledged Securities Account For Lee Kong Sim (8036608)
26. Tan Ming Kian  535,000 0.33%
27. Dang Chee Wai 533,333 0.33%
28. RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd  510,500 0.32%
 Exempt AN for RHB Islamic International Asset Management Berhad
29. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 500,000 0.31%
 Pledged Securities Account for Chong Khong Shoong  
30. AllianceGroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
 Pledged Securities Account for Lee Swee Kiat & Sons Sdn Bhd (8109706)  470,000 0.29%
   
total    137,046,160 85.63%
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Spring 
1 Room, Nilai Springs Golf & Country Club, PT 4770, Nilai Springs, 71800 Putra Nilai, Negeri Sembilan 
Darul Khusus on Thursday, 18 December 2014 at 10.00 a.m. for the following purposes:-

aGenDa

aS ORDinaRY BUSineSS:

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 
2014 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2. To approve the payment of Directors’ fee of RM165,000 for the financial year 
ended 30 June 2014.

3. To re-elect the following Directors who are retiring in accordance with Article 129 
of the Company’s Articles of Association: 

 
 (a) Chew Hon Foong 
 (b) Yeoh Chong Keng

4. To declare single tier final dividend 2.0 sen per ordinary share in respect of the 
financial year ended 30 June 2014.

5. To re-appoint Messrs. Crowe Horwath as Auditors of the Company for the ensuing 
year and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

 as Special Business :

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Ordinary Resolutions :-

6. authority to issue Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the companies act, 1965.

 “That pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, the Articles 
of Association of the Company and subject to the approvals of the relevant 
governmental and/or regulatory authorities, the Directors be and  are hereby 
empowered to issue shares in the Company, at any time to such persons and 
upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may, in 
their absolute discretion, deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares 
to be issued does not exceed ten percent (10%) of the issued share capital of the 
Company for the time being AND THAT the Directors be and are also empowered 
to obtain the approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares 
so issued on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) AND THAT 
such authority shall continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next Annual 
General Meeting of the Company.”

7. Proposed Renewal of existing Shareholders’ mandate for Recurrent Related 
Party transactions of a Revenue or trading nature

 “That the mandate granted by the shareholders of the Company on 11 December 
2013 pursuant to Paragraph 10.09 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of 
Bursa Securities Berhad (“Listing Requirements”), authorising the Company and its 
subsidiaries (“the YOCB Group”) to enter into the   recurrent related party transactions 
of a revenue or trading nature which are necessary for the YOCB Group’s day-to-
day operations as set out in Section 2.5 of the Circular to Shareholders dated 25 
November 2014 with the related parties mentioned therein , be and is hereby renewed 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate”);

(Resolution 1)

(Resolution 2)

(Resolution 3)
(Resolution 4)

(Resolution 5)

(Resolution 6)

(Resolution 7)

(Resolution 8)
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 That the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate is subject to the following :-
 

(a) the transaction are in the ordinary course of business and are on terms 
which are not more favourable to the related parties involved than generally 
available to the public and on terms not to detriment of the minority 
shareholders of the Company;

(b) disclosure is made in the Annual Report of the aggregate value of transactions 
conducted pursuant to the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate during the 
financial year where aggregate value is equal to or exceeds the applicable 
prescribed threshold under the Listing Requirements and/or the relevant 
Practice Notes; and

(c) annual renewal and such approval shall, unless revoked or varied by the 
Company in a general meeting, continue in force until  the conclusion of 
the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the expiration of the 
period within which the next Annual General Meeting is to be held pursuant 
to Section 143(1) of the Companies Act, 1965 (but shall not extend to such 
extensions as may be allowed pursuant to Section 143(2) of the Companies 
Act, 1965), whichever is earlier.

 AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are authorised to complete and do 
all acts and things (including executing all such documents as may be required) 
as they may consider expedient or necessary to give effect to the Proposed 
Shareholders’ Mandate.”

8. Proposed Renewal of authority for the company to Purchase its Own Shares of 
Up to ten Percent (10%) of the issued and Paid-Up Share capital of the company 
(“Proposed Share Buy-Back authority”)

 “THAT, subject to the provisions of Section 67A of the Companies Act, 1965, 
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, Part IIIA of 
the Companies Regulation 1966 and Chapter 12 of the Main Market Listing 
Requirements of Bursa Securities, the Company be and is hereby authorised 
to purchase such number of ordinary shares of RM0.50 each in the Company 
(“Proposed Share Buy-Back Authority”) as may be determined by the Directors 
of the Company from time to time through Bursa Securities upon such terms 
and conditions as the Directors may deem fit and expedient in the interest of the 
Company provided that :

(i) the maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares purchased and/or held 
by the Company as treasury shares shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the 
issued and paid up ordinary share capital of the Company at any point in time;

(ii) the funds allocated by the Company for the purpose of purchasing its shares 
shall not exceed the total retained profits and/or share premium account 
of the Company. The audited retained profits and share premium of the 
Company stood at RM3,609,000 and RM nil respectively as at 30 June 2014.

(iii) the authority conferred by this resolution shall continue to be in force until:

(a) the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company following the forthcoming 
AGM, at which time the said authority will lapse, unless the authority is 
renewed at that meeting, either unconditionally or subject to conditions; 
or

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (cont’d)

(Resolution 9)
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(b) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company is required to be 
held pursuant to Section 143(1) of the Companies Act, 1965 (but shall not extend to such 
extension as may be allowed pursuant to Section 143(2) of the Companies Act, 1965); or

(c) revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders in a general meeting,

  whichever occurs first.

 THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to deal with the shares purchased 
at their absolute discretion, either partially or fully, in the following manner:

(i) cancel all the shares so purchased;
(ii) retain the shares so purchased as treasury shares
(iii) distribute the treasury shares as share dividends to shareholders
(iv) resell the treasury shares on Bursa Securities in accordance to the Main Market Listing 

Requirements of Bursa Securities; and
(v) any combination of (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) above.

 AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to give effect to the Proposed 
Share Buy-Back Authority with full power to assent  to any modifications and/or amendments as may 
be required by the relevant authorities.”

9. To transact any other business for which due notice shall have been given.

nOtice OF DiViDenD entitlement

nOtice iS alSO HeReBY GiVen in that a final single tier dividend of 2.0 sen per share for the financial year 
ended 30 June 2014, if approved the Seventh Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 28 January 2015 to 
Depositors whose names appear in the Record of Depositors on 8 January 2015.

A Depositor shall qualify for entitlement to the dividend only in respect of :-

(a) Share transferred to the Depositor’s Securities Account before 4.00 p.m. on 8 January 2015 in respect 
of ordinary transfers; and

(b) Shares bought on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on the cum entitlement basis according to Rules 
of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

By Order of the Board

Dato’ tang Swee Guan (MIA 5393)
Secretary

Kuala Lumpur 
25 November 2014

notes:

(i) A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy/proxies 
who need not be a member/members of the Company, an advocate, an approved Company auditor, or a 
person approved by the Registrar to attend and vote in his/her stead.

(ii) A member may appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend the same meeting. Where a member 
appoints two proxies, the proxies shall not be valid unless the member specifies the proportion of his 
shareholding to be represented by each proxy. Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee 
as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991, it may appoint at least one proxy 
in respect of each securities account.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (cont’d)
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(iii) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney 
duly authorised in writing, or if the appointor is a corporation, either under its common seal or the hand 
of its officer or its duly authorised attorney. 

(iv) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Suite 
13A.01(A), Level 13A, Wisma Goldhill, 67 Jalan Raja Chulan, 50200 Kuala Lumpur not less than forty-eight 
(48) hours before the time for holding the meeting or at any adjournment thereof.

eXPlanatORY nOte On SPecial BUSineSS

authority to issue Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the companies act, 1965

The proposed Ordinary Resolution 7, if passed, will grant a general mandate and empower the Directors to 
issue shares up to an aggregate amount not exceeding 10% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the 
Company for the time being, for such purposes as the Directors consider would be in the best interest of the 
Company without having to convene separate general meetings. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a 
general meeting, will expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting. 

This general mandate is new and will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities, 
including but not limited to further placement of shares for purpose of funding future investment, working 
capital and/or acquisitions.

Proposed Renewal of existing Shareholders’ mandate for Recurrent Related Party transactions of a 
Revenue or trading nature

The proposed Ordinary Resolution 8, if passed, will enable the Company and its subsidiaries to enter into recurrent 
related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature which are necessary for its day-to-day operations and 
will eliminate the need to convene separate general meeting from time to time to seek shareholders’ approval. 
This will substantially reduce administrative time, inconvenience and expenses associated with the convening 
of such meetings, without compromising the corporate objectives of the YOCB Group or adversely affecting the 
business opportunities available to the YOCB Group. 

The detailed information on recurrent related party transactions is set out in the Circular to Shareholders dated                   
25 November 2014 which is despatched together with this Annual Report.

Proposed Renewal of authority for the company to Purchase its Own Shares Up to ten Percent (10%) of the 
issued and Paid-Up Share capital of the company (“Proposed Share Buy-Back authority”)

The proposed Ordinary Resolution 9, if passed, will empower the Directors to purchase the Company’s shares 
of up to 10% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company at any point in time, by utilizing the funds 
allocated which shall not exceed the total retains profits and share premium of the Company. This authority, 
unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

Please refer to the Circular to Shareholders dated 25 November 2014 for further information.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (cont’d)
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Details of Directors Standing for Re-Election

Directors who are standing for re-election at the Seventh Annual General Meeting of Yoong Onn Corporation 
Berhad:-

(i) The Director retiring pursuant to Article 129 of the Company’s Articles of Association: -

(a) Chew Hon Foong
(b) Yeoh Chong Keng

Further details of the above Directors are set out in the Directors’ Profile on page 12 and 14 of this Annual 
Report.

STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING 
Notice of Annual General Meeting



FORM OF PROXY



Number of Shares Held

Proxies  % of shares
Proxy 1  
Proxy 2  
Total  100%

No. Resolutions  For Against

1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements

2. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees

3. To re-elect Chew Hon Foong as Director

4. To re-elect Yeoh Chong Keng as Director

5. To declare single tier final dividend 2.0 sen per ordinary share in respect of the
financial year ended 30 June 2014

6. To re-appoint Messrs. Crowe Horwath as Auditors of the Company 

Authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965

  

 Special business 

7. 

8. To approve the proposed renewal of existing shareholders’ mandate for recurrent 
related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature   

9. To approve the Renewal of Authority for the Purchase by the Company of up to
Ten Percent (10%) of its own issued and paid-up capital 

Signed this day of  , 2014

Signature of Shareholder

*Strike out whichever not applicable 

I/We of

 of

  or failing him/her,

 of

My/our proxy/proxies is/are to vote as indicated below:

being a member(s) of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad hereby appoint

or failing him/her, *the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy(ies), to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 
Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Spring 1 Room, Nilai Springs Golf & Country Club, 
PT 4770, Nilai Springs, 71800 Putra Nilai, Negeri Sembilan Darul Khusus on  Thursday, 18 December 2014 at 10.00 
a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

(Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate boxes on how you wish your vote to be cast. If no specific direction 
as to voting is given, the proxy will vote or abstain at his discretion.)

For appointment of two proxies, the 
shareholdings to be represented by the proxies
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The Company Secretary

Suite 13A.01 (A),
Level 13A Wisma Goldhill

67 Jalan Raja Chulan
50200 Kuala Lumpur

please fold here

please fold here

Affix Stamp

Notes:

(i) A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General 
Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy/proxies who need not 
be a member/members of the Company, an advocate, an 
approved Company auditor, or a person approved by the 
Registrar to attend and vote in his/her stead.

(ii)   A member may appoint not more than two (2) proxies to 
attend the same meeting. Where a member appoints two 
proxies, the proxies shall not be valid unless the member 
specifies the proportion of his shareholding to be repre-
sented by each proxy. Where a member of the Company is 
an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities 
Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991, it may appoint at 
least one proxy in respect of each securities account.

(iii)  The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing 
under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly 
authorised in writing, or if the appointor is a corporation, 
either under its common seal or the hand of its officer or 
its duly authorised attorney.  

(iv) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at 
the Registered Office of the Company at Suite 13A.01(A), 
Level 13A, Wisma Goldhill, 67 Jalan Raja Chulan, 50200 
Kuala Lumpur not less than forty-eight (48) hours before 
the time for holding the meeting or at any adjournment 
thereof.
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